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Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting - submission of unaudited financial results 
(Standalone & Consolidated) for the quarter ended December 31, 2022, 
declaration of dividend and others matters. 

Dear Sires), 

In continuation of our earlier letters dated January 19,2023 and January 24, 2023 on the 
subject cited above and in pursuance of Regulation 30 read with Schedule III of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the following are 
submitted: -

(i) Unaudited financial results (standalone & consolidated) of the Company for the 
quarter ended December 31, 2022 in the prescribed format, which have been reviewed 
by the Audit Committee and approved & taken on record by the Board of Directors of 
the Company in their meetings held on January 30, 2023. . 

The said financial results have been subjected to Limited Review by 
Mi s. O.P. Bagla & Co. LLP and Mi s. S.K. Mittal & Co., Statutory Auditors and a 
copy of the Limited Review Report is enclosed herewith for your reference and 
record. 

(ii) Declaration of 20
' interim dividend @ t3.25 (Rupees Three and Twenty Five Paise 

only) per equity share oHIO/ - each for the financial year 2022-23 as approved by the 
Board of Directors ofREC Limited in its meeting held on January 30, 2023. Further, 
the record date for the said interim dividend is Thursday, February 9, 2023 and the 
said interim dividend shall be paidl dispatched on Tuesday, February 28, 2023 to 
those shareholders whose names appear (a) as beneficial owners in the statement(s) 
furnished by the depository(ies) as on the close of business hours on Thursday, 
February 9, 2023 in respect of shares held in electronic form; and (b) as members in 
the register of members on Thursday, February 9, 2023 in respect of physical shares. 

(iii) Revised market borrowing programme under different debt segments for 
FY 2022-23 is proposed as under: 

SI. Description Limit approved Revised limit 
No. earlier ('( in crore) ('( in crore) 

I. a) Domestic Bonds/ Debentures including but not 
limited to Infrastructure, Zero Coupon, 
Perpetual, Subordinate, Inflation-Indexed, Tax-
Free, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Green 75,000 88,000 
Bonds, Environmental, Social, and Governance 
(ESG) Bonds, Partly Paid, Separately 
Transferable Redeemable Principal Parts 
(STRPP), Staggered Maturity, Cumulative 

ReglonalOfflces: Bengaluru, Bhopal, Bhubaneswar, Chennai, Dehradun, Guwahati, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Jammu, Kolka 

Lucknow, Mumbai, Panch kula, Patna, Raipur, Ranchi, Shimla, Thiruvananthapuram & Vijaywada 
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Interest, Step Up Coupon, Bonds forming part 
of Bond ETF's, or any other Bondsl 
Debentures, withl without interest rate swapsl 
options withl without the same being embedded 
in the Bondsl Debentures structure, as may be 
permitted by the Regulatory Authorities from 
time to time whether Unsecuredl Secured, Non­
convertible, Redeemable, Taxablel Tax-free 
whether on private or public placement basis; 

b) Capital Gains Tax Exemption Bonds u/ s 54EC 
of Income Tax Act, 196 I; 

c) Rupee Term Loans from 
Banks/ FIs/ NBFCs/ Other Institutions; 

d)Extemal Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) 
including but not limited to Foreign Currency 
Term Loans/ Foreign Currency Bondsl Rupee 
Offshore Bonds (Masala or any other bonds)1 
Green Bonds, Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) bonds etc.; Export Credit 
Assistance (ECAs); Official Development 
Assistance Loans (Longl Mediuml Short 
Term); Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 
(FCCBs); Foreign Currency Non-resident 
(Bank) [FCNR (B)] Loans; Export ODA loans 
from Banks/ FIs/ NBFCs/ Other Institutions/ 
Multilateral Funding Agencies etc. (excluding 
rollovers). 

2_ Short Term Loan (STL) from Banks/ Fls/ NBFCs 
etc. (excluding temporary loans i.e STL of tenure 
less than 6 months, WCDL, CC Limit, OD 
Facility or any other arrangement of similar 
nature). 

Short Tenn Loan from Banks/Fls/NBFCs etc. raised 
"nd repaid dun·ng the financial year to be excluded from 
this limit. 

3. Commercial Papers 
Commercial Paper raised and repaid during the 
~ancial year to be exciudedJrom this limit. 

TOTAL 

5,000 5,000 

5,000 5,000 

85,000 98000 

The funds under the said revised market borrowing programme will actually be raised, 
from time to time, during the financial year 2022-23, with the approval of competent 
authority as per powers delegated in this regard, by the Board of Directors in the said 
meeting. 

The meeting of the Board of Directors commenced at 2:30 P.M. and concluded at 6:20 
P.M. 

End.: a/a 

~, 

OA-
(J.S. Amitabh) 

Executive Director & Company Secretary 



S.K. Mittal & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

E-29 South Extension Part-II 

New Delhi-110049. 

o P Bagla & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

B-225, 51h Floor, 

Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I 

New Delhi- 110020. 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Standalone Unaudited Financial Results for 

the quarter and nine months ended 31,1 December 2022 of REC Limited Pursuant to the 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements> Regulations, 2015 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

C.ore-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 

New Delhi -110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying standalone unaudited quarter and nine months ended 

results (including annexed Standalone Balance Sheet as on 31" December 2022, Statement of 

Profit & Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended as on that date and summarised Notes to 

Accounts, including Significant Accounting Policies) of REC Limited (the company) for the 

quarter and nine months ended 31" December 2022, being submitted by the company pursuant 

to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing Regulations"). 

This statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by the 

Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 

principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting', 

prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") read with 

relevant ritles issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements based on our review. 

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review 

Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 

Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

This standard requires that we plan and perform the' review to obtain moderate assurance as to 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited 

primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data 

and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed and 

Xi e do not express an audit opinion. 

~ 



Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 

believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results, prepared in accordance 

with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with relevant rules issued there under 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information 

required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the 

manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Emphasis of matter 

Refer Note No.4 to the financial results regarding, the provision of impairment allowance in 

respect of its loan assets and Letters of Comfort. In this regard, we have relied upon the basis of 

determination of impairment allowance, in so far as it relates to technical aspects/parameters 

including external ratings considered by independent agency appointed by the company and 

management judgement for ascertaining impairment allowance as management overlay. 

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of above matter. 

Mis S.K. Mittal & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 001135N 

Name - S. Murthy 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 2290 , 
UDIN: 2.2,01-"2. 90 B&r '{vee. "'¥4 2..... 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30th January 2023 

MIs O.P. 8agla & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 000018N/N500091 

Name - Rakesh Kumar 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087537 . 
UDIN: :2.g, 0 g =I ~ 3."1- r; bJ )(.. e. eo'" :2. '";f' 0 '1 



Chartered Accountants 

E-29 South Extension Part-II 

New Delhi-110049. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-225, 5th Floor, 

Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I 

New Delhi-110020. 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Consolidated Unaudited Financial Results 

for the quarter and nine months ended 3i" December 2022 of REC Limited Pursuant to the 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements> Regulations, 2015 

The Board of Directors, 

RECLimited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lodi Road, 

New Delhi -110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated unaudited quarter and nine months 

ended results (including annexed Consolidated Balance Sheet as on 31" December 2022, 

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for 

the period ended as on that date and summarised Notes to Accounts, including Significant 

Accounting Policies) of REC Limited ("the Parent") and its subsidiary (the Parent and its 

subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"), and its share of the net profit after tax for 

quarter and nine months ended 31~ December 2022, being submitted by the company 

pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing 

Regulations"). 

This statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by 

the Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and 

measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial " 

Reporting', prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") 

read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements based 

on our review. 

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review 

Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 

Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review 

is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to 

financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an 
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believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results, prepared in 

accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with relevant 

rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not 

disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 

52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material 

misstatement. 

Emphasis of matter 

Refer Note No.4 to the financial results regarding, the provision of impairment allowance in 

respect of its loan assets and Letters of Comfort. In this regard, we have relied upon the basis 

of determination of impairment allowance, in so far as it relates to technical 

aspects/parameters including external ratings considered by independent agency appointed 

by the company and management judgement for ascertaining impairment allowance as 

management overlay. 

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of above matter. 

Other Matter 

We did not review the interim financial results of the subsidiary included in the consolidated 

unaudited financial results, whose interim financial results reflect total assets of '( 680.31 

crores as at 31" December 2022 and total revenue of ~ 92.60 crores and '( 161.54 crores, total 

net profit after tax of '( 43.10 crores and '( 62.65 crores, other comprehensive income of ~ Nil 

and ~ Nil crores for the quarter and nine months ended 31" December 2022 respectively, as 

considered in the consolidated unaudited financial results. These interim financial results 

have been reviewed by other auditor whose Report has been furnished to us by the 

Management and our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the Report of the other 

auditor and the procedures performed by us. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 

Mis S.K. Mittal & Co. 

Name - S. Murthy 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 072290 

UDIN: 2 go'" 2.2. q 0 (6 ~ y V (.1)'1-"1-13 

Place: Ne"W Delhi 

Date : 30'h January 2023 

Mis O.P. Bagla & Co. LLP. 

e - Atul Aggarwal 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 092656 

UDIN: 2~09 2.6S/, gbJ uF I( R. Lis'! 7-



REC Limited 
Replered Office · Co~ SCOPE Co.ple .... 7, Loclltll RNd. New DelN· 110003, CIN! U01OlDL1%9G0I005095 

Statement of Unaudited Standalone financial Results for the quarter .... d period ended 31-12-2022 
(~in Crores) 

S.No. ,uticuJ.ut Quarter Ended 'eriod Ended YeuEnded 

)1· U-2O'U ,.....'021 31-12-1021 )1-12-2022 31·12-2021 "..,.,." 

(UMudittd) (UMudi~) (Unaouditf'd) (UNIudited) {\I'naudited} (Audited) 

• .. ~-
• la .. I'Ht~1 

CO lNere!it income on to.n as~ 9.660.06 9,533-88 9,573." 28,(5630 2B,.57558 37.810.84 

(ijJ C>ttwt INemt lr\come 119." 154.41 13(i..26 38$" ,.. .. 37S." 

Sa~1Gtal (A). r.,tt-Iftt inCOUlC' 9,7'1'9.62 ..... .2'> ',709.95 lI.NU, 28,811.19 38,186.46 

• oo.r ap.nuS t.coml .. Dividend Inc:otne 14,44 ' .90 . 240.34 I~" 2M4 

lill Fees and comrnIs:s1on income 62.61 34." SO.43 152.68 374.00 '''82 
'ill Net pinl (10$5) on fair value changes (161 .78) 207.41 246.51 76.08 290.58 346.57 

Sab-tab.! (8) - OthtrOper.tinalncome 184.73) 251.71 296.94 253.10 681.20 916.03 

C Total Re",nue from Oper.tiona (A+B) ",9U9 9,940.00 10,(106.89 29.oM.19 29,552.39 39,132.49 

o Other Income 16.82 8.55 32.05 33." 76.49 97.96 

Total incoml IC+D) 9,111.n ........ 10.G38.94 29,128.71 29,628.88 39,23CUS 

2 -"-• Finance costs 6,134.96 5,728.67 ....... 72 17.240.32 16,699.83 22,052.91 

B Net translalion! transaction exchange 10m' (gain) 207.91 456.79 114.7'9 1.144.25 327,87 799.05 

C Fees and commission bpense 4.43 1.43 3.27 11.35 12.31 16.73 

0 Impairment on flnandallnstrummts (293.82) 223.88 819.02 434.56 2,718.97 3,473.31 

E Employee benefits expense5 50.23 30.80 ..... .~ .. 123.30 159.61 

• Depredation and amortization 6.1 0 ' .BS '" 17.84 I~" 17.96 

G Corporale sodal responsibility n;penses ... 44 37.55 2331 114.89 150.150 110.67 

H Other e .. pMSfS 2". 34.SS 32.17 81.51 81.69 115.31 

Totall.,."" (A to tI) 6,.151.75 6,519.52 ,., .. 72< 19,201.2:2 20.037.10 U,8GS.S5 , Profit batoN We 11·2, , ....... ',429" 3.'51.'11 9,921.ss 9,591.71 U.U4.90 

• TI.1:'~rIM 

• CwnRtbx 

· Curm\t~ar ~ ... 652.93 184,41 1.952.04 2,3n.84 3,051.33 

· Earlier yNrs (56.93) 1.141.29) (3.96) 

B DekrMdw 103.2.5 47.72 (105.42) 69.07 (544.10) (668.39) 

Total w '~I'I" (A+B, ...... 7UO ... 679,OS ',873.12 1.833.74 2,378.98 

• Nat profit lor the period 13-4, ".,.,.. ~728.38 ~772." s.o53.13 7,758.04 10,045.92 

• Othercomprehln,ivelnCGma/(LoP) 
Ii) Itt-ma that willl'lot be .. cl ... ified ta profit or lou 
(a) Re-mel$u~mtl'lt pins/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans (2.36) 2.16 (2.36) ." (8.33) 

(b) Changt'J In fair ... Iue Of FVOCI equity instruments (7.67) (3.38) 07.78) (44.38-) "." 22.19 

Id Income lu ,.Iatinsto these items 
· Re-mo,u,.rnen, 8I1ns1(lcmes) on defined benefit plans . 0." (0.55) 0.59 ('O.13) 2.10 

· Chansel in (a ir ".'ue ot FVOCI equity instruments (0.21) (0.04) (0.88) (0.32) {O.88) 2.SS 

Sv.b-tatal Ii) (7.88) (5.19) (17.os) (46,41) 39.49 18.51 

Iii) 1tt-III.talat will be rad ... itied to profit or lou 
(0) Effective Portion 01 Cash Flow Hedges (239.04 510.94 153.25 479.36 147.94 480.84 

(bl 1e0M of hedSins 'I'WY. 77.01 (U91.S7) 79." (2..575.34) "59 (584.51 

Id Income t._ ""'"1'18 to these Items 
·Elfe.ctiw: Portlon of Cam How Hedges 60.17 (128.60) ,38.57) (120.64) (37.23) (121.02 

. Cost 01 htdJin8 ~ (19.38) ...... (20.01) 648.16 (18.27) 14111 

Su.b-1Gtal (iiJ (U1.24) , ...... 114.11 (t.,5''''') .65." ,n..., 
00., c.mpre"en.i .. _ InCGtncf(loaa)'" t'" period (j.m (129.12) (l13.86l t.51.U ItAtU3) ,...., '5"''' , ToW compreh.".ivI mcocne for ~e period (St6) 2,.7t8.96 1,914.52 2,.929.'71 6,431.80 7,962.56 ........ 

• Paid up f'qwty .h .... ~pital (f.e. Value 11'10 perthare) 2,633.22 2,633.22 1,914.92 2,633.22 l.974,92 1,974.92 

• Olh".quity (at per audited Wane. ahHt u at 31st Much) 
49,010.68 

I. Buit" Diluted eaminp per .qwty ,hare of' 10 e.ch (in ') 

(not annaaliatdl 

• For «Intlnuing operltions 10.93 1036 10.53 30.59 29,46 38.02 

• for «Il'IlinulnR and diSCOntinued ooer.lions lo.t3 10.36 10.53 30.59 29.46 38.02 .. ~-"".'" Il0l0 to lilt nlfltW"""' ,. 

I 



StAtement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the quuter a.nd period ended 31·12·2022 
(~inCroml (~inCrortil 

S.No. Putkubn Quarter Ended "riodEnded Yur!nded 

31-U·lOU 30<>9-2022 31-U-2021 31-U-2022 31-12-2021 31-03-2022 

(UNudlted) (Unaudited) (Unludlted) (Unludited) (Unaudil~ (Audited) , IacoDle 
A lAterHlincoDl' 
ID In.tetesI income on INn assets 9.,660.06 9,»188 9,573.69 28.456.30 28,57558 31.810.84 

{ID Other intenst income 121.65 156.40 13824 391." 301.93 _65 

Sub-total (A) - lnterHl[ncoDl' 9,781.71 9,690.28 9,711.93 28 ..... 7.19 28.11'7..51 38,1"-49 

• Other Operatina Iacom, 
(ij Dividend Income 8.58 .... 9.51 '.n 4.11 

(ii) Fees and corntl"li5slon 1ncome 62.61 ,4.4. 50.43 152.68 374.00 572.82 

1m Net gainI (loss) on flir v,1ue changes (161.18) 201.41 246.51 16.08 29(1.58 346.51 

6V: Sele 01 servk'IS ..... 22.91 28.18 143.93 91.88 150.96 

SIIM,t.aI (I). 00" OperatillalAcolM o.os 265.71 .... U 31131 75 .... l,074£' 

C !"rotal ReYftI .. fn:Hn OpentiOll' fA+') ',781.76 9,955." 10,Q37.05 29.235.20 29,635,69 39..269.05 

o Other Incomt 13.71 8.01 32.06 ,0.3, 41.52 10.15 

Total in('ODI' (C +0) 9,195.47 9,964.00 10..G69.t1 29..265.53 29,"'.2.1 39,339.20 , -.... 
A F~C'OSl$ 6,133.94 5,n7.58 5,547.87 17,237.11 16.697.88 22,D.50.96 

• Net tfaroslatlon/ tJ"_ction e-xchInge km/ (glln) 207.91 456.79 114.79 1,144-25 327.81 "'.OS 

C Fees and <OI!'Imls$lon bpense ... , 1.<, 327 11.35 12.31 ,." 
D Impairment on tinandll inst:ruments (275.18 219.13 115.02 451 .95 2,708..16 3.470.02 

• Cost of servi(8 rendered 7." 7.86 17.14 31.56 .7.54 65.11 

F Employee benefits e"pense5 57.00 36.70 46.00 114.86 131.59 180.83 

G Depredltion Ind amortization 6.12 5.91 5.13 17.98 12.74 18.24 

H Corporlte sod.1 reponsibility expenses. 20.62 37.69 23.65 115.84 61.46 172.35 , """'"- "-'6 34.68 ..... 84.19 92.63 123.51 

Total bpi .... (A to I) 6,185.24 ',5Z'7.1ti 6,617.51 19.2".09 20,098.111 " ....... , Share of I'Iofitl (loa) of JoInl Vm~ IC'COlUlttd for Vlin, ~~ty mttbod - (lUll (11.81 

• Profit befON Tax (I-2+3) 3,610.23 '.836-2' 3,4.51.60 9,996.44 9,513.21 '2,430-" 

• Tax Expenll 
A CtuNnlTo 

• Current VHr 653.24 .,. ... 185.18 1,976.96 2,381.34 3,069.23 

- Earlier YHt$ (56.93 (147.29) (3.96 

• OelarredTn .. ". 4Uti (J07.61 6.5.16 (548,49 (670..44) 

olal Tax Upe",e(A+B) ...... 704.U "8-.16 , .... ., 1.638.85 ..... .., 
• Nel profit lor!h, period (&-5) 2,915.33 2.13l.U 1m.44 UOUI 1,'134.37 10,035.10 

7 Oth,r compNhen,ive Income/{loat) 
(i) Item' that will not be Nd ... ified to profit or Ion 
(a) Re-mHsurernent gains/(Iosses) on defined benefit plaM (2.36) 2.16 (2.36) 0.51 (8.33) .. Chlnges in f,lr .... ue of FVOCI equity Instruments (7.'~ (3.38) (17.78 (44.38 ,. ... 22.19 

Cd Share 01 Profit of}oint Venture accounted for using e<qUIty method - - (002 (0.02 

"" lncome .... tel11insto these items 
· Re-mta5umnentpins/(Iosses) on dtftntd benefit pllns 0.59 (0.55) 0.59 (0.13 2.10 

· Changes In flir vllue of FVOCI equity instruments (0.21) (0.04) (0.88) (0.32) (0.88) 2.55 

Sub-totllli) (7.881 (5.19) (17.05) '4U71 39.41 18,49 

(ii) Itemllllal will be red...m:,d to profit or loat 
I,) EH«tive Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (239." 510.94 153.25 479.36 141.94 4SO.84 .. (.;ost of htdslns restf"Ve 77.01 (1.591.57) "". (2.575.34) 72~' (584.51) 

Id Share 01 other <Omprehensiw incomeJ (loss) of joint venture Kcounted 1.19 1.19 
for using equity method 

(d, Income tu relatinS to these items 
·Ef~ive Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 60.17 (128.60) (38.57) (120.64) (31.23) (121.02) 

. Cost 01 hedgins reserve (19.38 .... 56 (20.01) 648.16 (18.27) 147.11 

Sub-tataJ. {iiI (121.24) (80U'7) 114.17 (1,568.46) '''->2 (76.391 

OttterClilalpNfM"rive u.eoDla/OoU) htr tile periocI (i + ill (129.12) (81).86) 151.U 11.614.93) ...... (57,911 

• Total COIIlpNllenaive Inc_lot the period t6+71 L"'-" 1,91U6 2.930.56 6,486.61 1,,",,06 9.9T1.80 

• Paid up Equity Share Capital (Face Vllue "0 per shire) . 2,633.22 2,633.22 t.974.92 2.633.22 1,974.92 1,974.92 

10 Other Equity (IS per ludlted balance sheet IS at 31st Mlrch) 
49,339.18 

11 Buie 1& Dilute'd ,amin. perequity l!tue of' 10 each (in ') 

(nollJlnuaLil •• U 

A For cootlnuing opHations 11.07 '1!.3Il .0.53 30.77 29.31 37,911 

• For contlnulna ,nd discondnutd oDtfations '1-07 1038 ,0.53 30.77 ,t3, 37.'11 



NoteilO dI. fin&nd.I .. ",tc.: 

t. The above financial mulls of the Company were reviewed by the Audit Commillft .nd approved and laken on record by the Board of Directors al the mHtln8 held on 30th January. 2023. These re5ults have 

been 5ub}ecled to ttmlitd. ",view by the SUtutory Auditors of theCompany. 

1. The fiN.nd41 mullS nave bft.n prepared in accordance with the recognition and me.suremmt prindples laid down In Indian Accounting Standard (Ind.AS) 34 • 'Interlm Financial Reporting', notified under 

Sedion III of the Companies Act, 2013 rud with Companies (Indian Accountin8 Stand.rds) Rutes, 2015, as .mended from tilTlt' to time, and ocher a<counting prind plts 

gm«ally 'C<'epI«IIn India. 

l. The consolid<1lted ilC'COUf\ts oi the subsidiary oompany ROC Power Drwlopmertt and Consultancy Umited (formerly REC Power DislriOutktn Company Umiled) hils bftn conso!lda&ed in KCOfd~ with the 
Indi<1lf\ AC'COW1l1n8 Standarcll10 'Consolidated FlnanrlaIStaIftnenIs·. 

Ua) PJovlslonin&on loin .swu Is I»sed on -ECL(Elpeaed Credit Loss) methodolosy" 'pp'oveod by the Board of [Mredorsof ~ComPlny and upon the rtpor1 provided by an lndependft'll "gMer appolmed by the 
Comp.wty. whkh abo conslde~ ralings by the Minl~ry oll'ower. as olJld WMn they are upd.ted. fOf [Mllriblilion Co~nIes (0I5COMJ;). This is furttwr enhanced by managemenl ov~I.)'5 In c~in IIccounts 

whrreVi!t" nt'aSSilry COtI$ldfting ~ factors Invo'ved in the acttlW\l and al50 on KwunI 01 allgnlngthe provisions with the Iud lender. Details Ire as follow5: 

( ~In Crores 
S.No. ,uti~la,. As at 31.l2.2022 A. aI31.03.2022 

Sla~tfl2 SI'Ie3 Total Staplf12 S"Ie3 Total 
I Loan assets 3.96,224.96 14,923.21 4,11,148.17 3,68.211.37 17.159.89 3.85,371.26 , 

Imp;tlr~ntloss IIlIowonce (net of movements) 4.27S.31 10,312.94 14.588.2.5 3.138.93 11,565.73 14.704.66 

Provl.lonil\t Coverage (%) (211) 1.08% 69. \1% 3.55%- 0.85% 67.40".4 3.82% 

(b) During the qu.Tter, the borrower 'Ind Bharal Energy Utkal limited' with an oul511nding balance ot t m.DO crores ha5 been resolved under Insolvtncy and B.lnkwplC)' Code (IOC) and a sum of t 536.16 crores 

ha§ been written off with corresponding reversal ot ECl of t 624.01 crores thereon (nel of tuh teCoveritsl SK\IriUes]. 

5. Interftt Income on aedli.]mpalred l();In assets is nol being recognised '5 a m.ltar of pt\ldence. pl'tIdlng the outcome of resolutions ot such assets. 

6. The Company's ""In business is to provide finance to power sedor. AccordIngly, the <Ompany does not have mDre than one segment eligible for reporUns in terms ot Indian Accounting SlIndard lind AS) 108 
'Operallng Segn'lef1l$'. 

1. DJrlng the quarter, the Company lUIs dfCIoIred an interim divldC!NI of t 3.25 per ~uity than? (on fllCe villull!'of t 10/· lI!'achJ and 9th February, 202J hu been fI:o;«I as w'«erd D.1tll!' for payment of Interim OivIdC!NI. 

The totllllntmm OMdend for tN! flNncial '1'&12022-23 i§ ~ 8.25 per equ.ity share (Of' face v,lue ot ~ 101- eech). 

8. The ~itiONII inklrmalion as required under ResuLalion 52(4) of SE81 (Usting ObIl&<lltk3ns ,nd Oisclosute RequlrementsjlWgulllllons, 2015 Is <1I"""lW 15 Aft"e.uN .A. 

9. Pursu.nt to ReguLaUon 54 of 5£," (listing ObtlpUons and DiKfo5uIT R~l.Iiremml$) Regulallons, 2015, the serured listed non-conYfttlbte debt wcuritJi!s issutd by IN Company and OlllsUnding as al 31st 

Decembn, 2022 are I\IlIy 5f'CU.1'f!d (1.18 times). suffic1ll!'nt 10 discharge the prtndplll .moun! Ind IhiI!' InlKftI Ihereon,I .U Urnes. by wily of mortgage on eMlln Immovable pt'optnies .nd/or dwrge Ofl the 
recelvabfH of !he Comp.lny, In tCfTnS 0{ InpKtlve offer docummll infOflNtion ~morandum and! or Drbft'Ilurll!' Trusl Dood. Funhef. ieCUrtly covet for non<onvert_bIe debt SKUrilies Issued by lheeomp.ny is 

1.13 limn iIJ.t 31t' lJrecoftnbrr, 2022. 1he Secur:llyCovlI!'r in the presqibed tOf1T1.' hiI, bofan aMaud" Anne.llfe·B. 

10. -'he Company r.lses funds In dHft.renl currencies through a mho: of lenn 101105 hom banks! flNondaJ inSlilutklnsl GovL agil!'tldes and non<Olwertlblll!' secul1t1es of dlfftrenllenors through priv,tll!' placement. The 

issue prOC'ell!'ds have been fully utilized and thII!'rll!' are no I1UIterlal devilltlon(s) from thr Silled ob;rcts in the olfrr documentJ bUormation memorandum of such non·('()lwedlble securities. The statement as 

p~ribed under Krgulallon 52(7) & S2(7A) of SEel (Usling Obligations and Dl5dosure Requ rements) Regula tions. 201S has been annexed as A,mellln.c. 

Further, I,,""e hu bevn no dll!'fault as on 31st December. 2022 in the IYpayment of d.ot MCUrltl"-- borrowings lind subordinated lIabi' illes and the Company hIlS mel all ils dll!'bt servicing obligations.. whether 

principal Dr interesl, durin81he period. 

11. 'J1w1T arll!' no report.ble cases of 1000ns transferredl acqUired during the period ended Jist December, 2022 (previous period NUl l.lflder Masler DIrection . Re$erve Bonk of Indl, (Transfer of Loan Exposures) 

OilYC'lions, 2021 dated 24th Sirplembil!'r 2021. Further. lhere are no cases during lhe ~rIod ended 31st Dl:cember. 2022 lprevlous period Nil) where resolution pl,n ImplemlPflled under the 1Ws0lution Fralllil!'Work 

for Covid·19 rellltN Sitt'SS 8$ ~r RBI drcular daled 6th AUgU512020. 

12. The Balanc. Shfel. Statement of Profit &: Loss, Stalement of Changes in Equity (SCX:IS), Slatemmt of Cuh Rows and summarIzed Notes to Accountli, including SIgnificant Accounting Policies on Standalone 

b.sis lind Consolidatil!'d bolsls for the period ended 31st December. 2022 have been anneM!d herewith al ARnexure-D and Annexure·S n'Spectively. 

13. 100 figures for the qU.1 rter ended 31st December, 2022 and 31s1 De<:ember. 2021 have bem drrived by d«luctln8 the yt'lIr to dille unaudited figures for the period ended lOth September, 2Ol2 and 30th Septembler. 

2021 trom thc!uNudlted figures for the pII!'riod ended 3151 December. 2022 and 31st DKembrr, 2021 teSpectlve4y. 

14. 1'rt'Vtous periodl ytars' figures Nve been regtoUped/ reclassified, wherevft lle('e'Uary, in Ofd« to rnakr thrm com.p.uable.. 

Flaet: New Inlhi 

Datr: 30th j,nua". 2023 

.3 



Annexure A 

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the 

quarter and period ended 31st December, 2022 

Standalone Consolidated 

S.No. Particulars Unit As atJ For the quarter As atJ For the period As atJ For the quarter As atJ For the period 

ended 31.12.2022 ended 31.12.2022 ended 31.12.2022 ended 31.12.2022 

1 Debt Equity Ratio' times 6.44 6.40 

2 Outstanding Redeemable preference shares ~ in Crores Nil Nil 

3 Debenture Redemption Reserve ~ in Crores Nil Nil 

4 NetWorth2 ~ in Crores 54,839.84 55,216.21 

5 Total debts to total assets' times 0.80 0.80 

6 Operating Margin' % 3654 34.00 36.77 34.09 

7 Net profit Margin' % 29.64 27.65 29.76 27.68 

8 Sector specific equivalent ratios 

(a) CRAR6 % 25.00 

(b) Gross Credit Impaired Assets Ratio' % 3.63 

(e) Net Credit Impaired Assets Ratio· % 1.12 

Notes: 

1 Debt/Equity Ratio = Net Debt / Net Worth (Net debt represents principal outstanding less cash and cash equivalents available.! 
2 Net Worth is calculated as defined in section 2(57) of Companies Act, 2013. 
3 Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total Assets. 

4 Operating Margin = Net Operating Profit Before Tax / Total Revenue from Operation. 
5 Net profit Margin = Net Profit after Tax / Total Income. 

6 CRAR = Adjusted Net worth! Risk weighted assets, calculated as per applicable RBI guidelines. 

7 Gross Credit Impaired Asset Ratio ~ Gross Credit Impaired Assets / Gross Loan Assets. 

8 N D' r. • ... it Impaired Asset Ratio = Net Credit Impaired Assets / Gross Loan Assets. 

~~coverage Ratio, Interest Service Coverage Ratio, Current Ratio, CurrentL · •. Ratio, Long Term Debt to Working Capital. Debto~LA ventory 

.,~On ~ad Debts to Accounts Receivable Ratio is not applicable to the c~M~ ~ ~co<" 
I;' e i ~ ((q;7: '~ /~rs..~<:;, 

.s: I-'Y. \ 't! t I R ... EIo:1rification .~~~ 
1'", .t * ~liriled * q N Delli I ~I?£:D ACCO 

\. A. ~: J i9'1l ~ 
ElrJ:::l,.., A_,..O..:s 
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AnnexureC 

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(7) & 52(7 A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended 31st December, 2022 

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds: 

Mode of Fund 
Raising 

Type of 
Name of (Public issues! 

instru 
the Issuer ISIN Private 

placement) ment 

1 2 3 4 

RECLimited 
INE020BOSDX9 Private 

NCO 
(Reissuance ) Placement 

RECLimited INE020B08DZ4 
Private 

NCO 
Placement 

RECLimited INE020BOSEA5 
Private 

NCO 
Placement 

RECLimited INE020BOBEB3 
Private 

NCD 
Placement 

RECLimited INE020BOSECI 
Private 

NCO 
Placement 

B. Statement of deviation! variation in use of Issue proceeds: 

Particulars 

Name of listed entity 

e of fund raising 

!rument 

~ in Crores 

If 8 is Yes, 
then specify 

the purpose of Date of Any Remarks, 
raising Amount Funds deviation for which the 

if any 
funds Raised utilized (YeS/No) funds were 

utilized 
5 6 7 8 9 10 

21-10-2022 3,000.00 3,000.00 No NA 

25-11-2022 3,889.00 3,889.00 No NA 

02-12-2022 1,701.50 1,701.50 No NA 

02-12-2022 2,000.00 2,000.00 No NA 

16-12-2022 500.00 500.00 No NA 

Total 11,090.50 11,090.50 

Remarks 

RECLIMITED 

Pi!9lie iSSlie{ Private placement 

Non-convertlbl~ 



Particulars Remarks 

Date of raising funds Please refer Col. 5 above table 

Amount raised ~ 11,090.50 crores 

Report filed for quarter ended 31-12-2022 

Is there a deviation! variation in use of funds raised? No 

Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue stated in the prospectus! offer 
document? 

If yes, details of the approval so required? 

Date of approvai N.A 
Explanation for the deviation! variation 

Comments of the audit committee after review 

Comments of the auditors, if any 

Objects for which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation! variation, in the following table: 

Original Modified Original Modified Funds Amount of deviation! variation for the quarter Remarks, if 
I object object, if allocation allocation, if utilised according to applicable object any 

any any ('I: in Crores and in %) 

---NA--

Deviation could mean: 
I 

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised. 

b. Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed . 

....., 



AnnCXURD 

RECLimited 
Regl8te",d Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: L40101DL1969GOI005095 

Balance Sheet as at 31st December 2022 
(II: in Crores) 

S. Particulars Not. A .. t Alat 
No. No. 3]-12-2022 3]-03-2il22 

ASSETS 
(]) Finandal Aneta 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 6 200.50 126.40 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 7 967.61 2,295.30 
(c) Derivative finandaJ instruments 8 8,480.74 5,510.17 

(d) Loans 9 3,97,887.12 3,71,930.54 
(e) Investments ]0 2,984.89 2,157.97 

(I) Other financiaJ assets ]] 24.713.81 24,396.94 

Tot.l- FI,..,.d",' Asst'ts 0) 4,35,234.73 4.06,4]7.32 

(2) Non-Financi.l Anets 

(a) Current tax assets (net) 12 597.17 179.64 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 13 3.592.87 3,134.74 

(e) Property, Plant &: Equipment 14 618.09 623.67 

(d) Capital Work-in-Progress 14 6.88 6.07 

(e) Other Intangible Assets 14 2.08 425 

(I) Other non-financial assets ]5 7755 46.06 

TotAI- NOft-FillllllcUal As"" (1.) 4,894.64 3,994.43 

(3) Allet. cla'lified al held fOt sale 16 0.58 0.86 

Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 4,40,129.95 4.]0,4]2.6] 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
(]) FinUldal Liabilities 
(a) Derivative financial instruments 8 922.00 553.14 

(b) Debt Securities ]7 2,23.448.04 2,19.633.57 

(e) Borrowings (other than debt securities) ]8 1.28.732.71 1.06.651 .59 

(d) Subordinated Liabilities 19 6.795.46 6.816.47 

(e) Other financiaJliabilities 20 25.196.10 25.575.84 

Totlll - Fillalldal Liabilities 0) 3,85,094.3] 3,59,230.61 

(2) Non-Finandal Liabilitiel 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - 10.25 

(b) Provisions 22 126.19 104.51 

(e) Other non-financial liabilities 23 69.61 81.64 

TotA'- NOII-FillllllcUal Liabilities (2) ]95.80 ]96.40 

(3) EQUITY 
(a) Equity Share Capital 24 2,633.22 1.974.92 

(b) Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 2S 558.40 558.40 

(e) Other equity 26 51.648.22 48.452.28 

Total· E,llity (3) 54,839.84 50,985.60 

To,,"l- UABILI1lES AND EQIII1Y (1+2+3) 4,4U29.95 4 ]0,4]2.6] 



RECLimited 
Registered Office· Core4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi ·110003, CIN: UOIOIDL1969GOIOOS095 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December 2022 
(~. c In ro ... 

S. Particulars Note Priod ended Priod ended 

No. No. 31-12-2022 31-12-2021 

Revenue from Operations 

(i) Interest Income 27 28,841.69 28,871.19 

(ti) Dividend Income 28 24.34 16.62 

(ii) Fees and Commission Income 29 152.68 374.00 

(iv) Net gainl (loss) on fair value changes 34 76.08 290.58 

1. Total Revenue from Operations (i to iii) 29,094.79 29,552.39 

11. Other Income 30 33.98 76.49 

111. Total Income 0+11) 29,128.77 29,628.88 

Expenses 

(i) Finance Costs 31 17,240.32 16,699.83 

(ii) Net translation! transaction exchange loss 32 1,144.25 327.87 

(iii) Fees and commission Expense 33 11.35 12.31 

(iv) Impainnent on financial instruments 35 434.56 2,718.97 

(v) Employee Benefits Expenses 36 156.44 123.30 

(vi) Depredation and amortization 37 17.84 12.53 

(vii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 38 114.89 60.60 

(viii) Other Expenses 39 81.57 81.69 

IV. Total Expense. (i to viii) 19,201.22 20,037.10 

V. Profit before Tax OIl·IV) 9,927.55 9,591.78 

VI. Tax Expense 40 

(i) Current tax 1,804.75 2,377.84 

(ii) Deferred Tax 69.07 (544.\0) 

Total Tax Expense (i+il) 1,873.82 1,833.14 

VII. Profit for the period 8,os3.73 7,758.04 

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or los. 

(a) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (2.36) 0.51 

(b) Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (44.38) 39.99 

(c) Income tax relating to these items 

_ Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.59 (0.13) 

- Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (0.32) (0.88) 

Sub-Total (i) (46.47) 39.49 

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

(a) Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 479.36 147.94 

(b) Cost of hedging reserve (2,575.34) 72.59 

(c) Income tax relating to these items 

-Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (120.64) (37.23) 

- Cost of hedging reserve 648.16 (18.27) 

Sub-Total (ii) (1,568.46) 165.03 

V111. Other comprehensive Income/CLoss) for the period (i+ii) (1,614.93) 204.52 

IX. Total comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VID) 6,438.80 7,962.56 

X. Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of , 10 each (in t) 41 

(1) For continuing operations 30.59 29.46 

(2) For continuing and discontinued operations 30.59 29.46 

-
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RECLimited 
Registered Office· Core-<!, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi ·110003, CIN: IAOI0IDL1969GOJ005095 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st December 2022 
(hnCrores) 

Particulan Period ended 31·12·2022 Period ended 31·12·2021 

A. Cash Flow /rom Operating Activities: 

Net Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for: 

1. Loss/ (Gain) on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 

2. Loss! (Gain) on derecognition of Assets held for sale (net) 

3. Lossl (Gain) on cessation of Significant influence in Joint Venture (EESL) 

4. Depreciation" Amortization 
5. Impairment losses on Financial Instruments 

6. Loss! (Gain) on Fair Value Changes (net) 

7. Effective Interest Rate in respect of Loan Assets and Borrowings 

8. Interest on Commercial Paper 
9. Unrealise<! Foreign Exchange Translation Loss! (Gain) 

10. Interest on Investments 

Operating Profit! (Lou) before Changes in Operating A.sets" Uabiliti .. 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 

1. Loan Assets 

2. Derivatives 
3. Other Finandal and Non- Financial Assets 

4. Other Finandal and Non- Financial Liabilities & Provisions 

Cash flow from Operations 

1. Income Tax Paid (including IDS) 
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

B. Cuh Flow hom Investing Activities 

1. Sale of Property, Plant /I< Equipment 

2. Sale of assets held for sale 

3. Investment in Property, Plant /I< Equipment (incl. CWIP" Capital Advances) 
4. Invesbnent in Intangible Assets (induding intangible assets under development) 

development & Capital Advances) 

5. Finance Costs Capitalised 
6. Sale! (Investment) In Equity Shares and Venture Capital Fund 

7. Redemption! (Investment) in High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) (net) 

8. Redemption! (Investment) in Debt Securities other than HQLAs (net) 

Net Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Fi.n.ancing Activities 
1. Issue! (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (Net) 

2. Issue! (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) 

3. Raising! (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loans! WCDL from Govt.! 

Banks! Fls (net) 

4. Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and 

Borrowings (net) 
5. Issue Expenses on Bonus Issue of Equity Shares 

6. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares 

7. Repayment towards Lease Liability 

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Net Increasel (Decrease) in Cash" Cash Equiyalents 

Cash &: Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period. 

Cash &: Cash E uivalents as at the end of the riod 

9,927.55 9,591.78 

1.66 (25.33) 

(3.28) (1.71) 

(29.01) 

17.84 12.53 

434.56 2.718.97 

(75.79) (289.51) 

(28.86) (106.79) 

6.02 

1,551.58 962.74 

(21.01) (38.22) 

11,804.25 12,801.47 

(26,556.69) (11,381.39) 

628.99 (530.91) 

880.41 598.72 

(855.60) (1,497.32) 

(14,(198.64) (9.43) 

(2,231.94) (2.278.72) 

(16,330.58) (2,288.15) 

0.05 26.90 

3.56 1.73 

(12.01) (41 .72) 

(0.01) (0.24) 

(5.60) 

10.13 43\.17 

(457.82) (505.88) 

(184.74) 21.37 

(640.84) (72.27) 

1,797.93 (11,329.64) 

1,985.24 

10,482.79 2,473.19 

7,030.08 19,194.07 

(0.71) 

(2.264.57) (1,226.42) 

(0.01) 

17,045.52 11,096.43 

74.10 8,736.01 

126.40 1,140.49 

200.50 9,876.50 
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A Equity shaft c.apibl 

Particulus 
Balance at the brginning of the period 

Cl1anges in equity share capital during the period" 
Balance ilt the end of the Dftiod 

RECLimited 
Regittered Office· CCft-f., SCOPE Comple~ 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi ·11(1003, CIN: L4Ol0tDL1969GOIOOS095 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December 2022 

Mar31-12-2022 

1,914.92 

658.30 
~33.22 

(o!: in Crores] 
A.aI3t..(J3..2022 

1,914.92 

1,914.92 

During the period, the Company has issued 65,83,G6,ooo equity ,bares of f 10 each u fully paid-up bonus sharet in the ratio of 1 (One) equity shaM for every 3 (Three) equity tIwe oulStanding on the record date i.e. 18th 
August 2022. 

B Instruments entiRly equity in natuR 

Particulan 

Balance at the besinning of the period 

Changes in instruments entirely equity in nature during the period 

BaUnce al the end of the pniod 

&for note 26 for ddlll/ 

C Other Equity 

IRemeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (net of taxes) 

Recognition through Other Comprehensive Income (net 

Comprehensive lncome 

I
Other adjusbnenb 

Transferred tol (from) Retained Earnings 

Transferred to General Reserve 

of gainl (loss) on salel extinguishment 

equity instnunent (net of taxes) 

Currency Translation gainl (loss) on long 
items during the period 

I
Amortisation during the period 
Total- Other adjUSbnenb 

Special 
R ...... 

outed ull 
36(1) (viii) of 

the Inc:ome 
Tax Act,I96l 

19,222.23 

2.32832 

2,.328.32 

-go 
Pnmium Cunmcy 
Account Moneluy 

1 .... 

Tranalalion 

Differenc:e 
Acanmt 

2,128A1 

1,s52.()9 1 

1,552.09 

(~in Crores 
"'.1131-12-2022 As at 31.(t3.2022 

558.4. 558.40 

558.40 558.40 

COibof ToW .... - Retained I "'uily I Pomoo 0/ I Hedging 
R ...... EmUnp Instruments Cuh Flow ....... 

H"'8" 

',8S0.03 I 4~ml 24.07 (165.61) 41.45 40,893.05 
7,758.04 7,758.04 

0.38 0.38 
39.11 110.71 5432 204.14 

7,758.421 39.11 110.71 5432 7,%2.56 

39.45 

75116 

39.45 



Puticu1an RnnvuI.:SWFlu. FVOO-
({ in Crores) 

Effective Cosbof ToW 
Special Reserve for 'Rftern Fund Sec:uriti .. Foreip Geoen1 Reained ,,"Iy Portion of Hedsins 
R ...... Bad and vi. 45-ICof ...... ~ C ....... 'Y R""". Eamia .. Instnunfllts Calh Flow ........ 

created uJ. doublful Rftft'Ve BMlk Account 
M_ ........ 

36(1 HviiU of debbul. 01 """' Ad, 1 .... ... - 36(1)(viY) of ,,,. T..-
Tax Act, 1961 the Inc:ome Diffemoco 

Tax Act. 1961 Acaoant 

B~ at at 31 .. March 2022 2l,J01-03 , ..... 5..1U.oo 2.234-S4 (555.20) 11,781.62 6.915.31 (37.'" 194.21 (395.95' ..... 1.21 

Profit tOt' ttw period 8,053.13 8,053.13 

Rtmeasumnent 01 Defined Bcrwfil Plans (Mt of taxes) (1 .77) ('.77) 

Recognition through Othn Comprehensive Income (nd 0 (44.'0) 358.72 (1,927.18) (1,613.16) 

ta",,) 
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Bonus lNI.Il' of Equity Shara (658.30) - (658.30) 

&peun incurred on Bonus lNue of Equity Sham (0.71) (o.n) 

Dividends (2.26457) (2.26457) 
Total- Tranuction with owners - - - (659.01) - - (2.26<57) - - <2.92l-58) 
8~ce .. at 31st Dec_ber 2D2l , ........ - 1,.425.15 1,5".53 (81t.S7) 11,978.44 9,115.21 (90~ L-. 551.'3 -

(2,323.13) 51PM.2.2 
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RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 
CIN: L40101DL1969GOIOO5095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company") was incorporated in the year 1969. The Company is domiciled 

in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal place of business at Core-4, 

SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-llOOO3, India. The books of accounts and financial 

statements are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, 

Haryana, in addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across 

the country, mainly in the State Capitals and one training center at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government Company engaged in extending financial assistance across the power 

sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-Banking 

Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges 

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation 

These Standalone Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines. 

The financial statements for the period ended 31" December 2022 were authorized and approved for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 30" January 2023. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given 

below: 

3.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of 

accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are 

measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies have been applied 

conSistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional currency of 

the Company. 
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3.2 Income recognition 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 

rate applicable. 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs 

and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest 

including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for 

credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the 

complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including 

interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)! Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

(IBC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery 

thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 

rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on 

an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately 

under the head interest income. 

Interest income on credit-impaired loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending 
the outcome of resolutions of stressed assets. 

Rebate On account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest 

amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the 

corresponding interest income. 

Income from Government schemes 

Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on accrual basis based on the services 

rendered. 

Dividend income 

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on 

accrual basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established 

only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised 

separately under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Other services 

Fees! charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the year of receipt. 
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3.3 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and! or construction 

of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use, are 

capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its 

intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the 

effective interest rate method. 

3.4 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period. 

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.5 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactiDns and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in 

the financial statements before 1 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a "Foreign 

Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amortized over the balance period of 

such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated 

using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and initial measurement 

.!.iln!! 
Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not depreciated. 

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is amortised over the lease term. 

Other TanBible assets 



Subsequent costs are included in the asset's canying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Company beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreCiation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use 

for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided @ 

100%. 

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial 

year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 

An item of PPE and any Significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work-in-Progress 

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress.' The 

cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable 

cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquiSition! construction of PPE 

which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under 'Capital Advances.' 

3.7 Intangible asset. 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets mainly comprise of computer software which is initially measured at cost. Such assets 

are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow 

to the company. 

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value) 
'. 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 

useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may 

be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the 

useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 



Intangible Assets under Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under developmenf till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the 

acquisition! development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3.8 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is considered 

as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Company; are available for 

immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price and the sale has 

been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such assets are 

measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are not 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

3.9 Investment property 

Investment properties are the assets which have undetermined future use. Investment properties are 

measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment 

properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price, 

borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 

working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 

purchase price. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assefs carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Company beyond one year. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives! 

The Company only has land as an investment property, which is not depreciated. 

De-recognition 

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any 

gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in 



3.10 Financial Instruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 

transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured 

initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described 
below. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of fi1Umcial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories 

upon initial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVfPL) 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

• Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures (carried at cost in accordance with 

Ind AS 27) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or equity instruments at FVOCI are subject to review for 

impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a 

financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are 

applied to each category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to 

collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on Specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost. 

Modification of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company 

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss 

in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present 

value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's 

original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 

financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. 
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Financial assets at FvrPL 

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria for amortized 

cost classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are 

designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this 

category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or 

losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by 

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host 

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 

a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise 

would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign 

exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to 

a party to the contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts 

or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for 

trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at 

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment 

classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are 

recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and reported within the FVOCI reserve within 

equity, except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such 

gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit &< Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the Company may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and 

conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 

difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not 

already been recorded. 

De-recogIlition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights 

to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and 

substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the financial 
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at 
fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. AU host contracts which are in nature of a 

financial liability and separated from embedded derivative are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Hedge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements: 
there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relationship 

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the 

Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accoWlting are recognised initially at fair 
value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is 
effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in 
equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification 

adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Company formally deSignates and documents the 
hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company's risk management objective and strategies. The 

documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s) 

being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness 

requirements. 

Fair Value Hedges 

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 

Prof!t & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amount of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging instrument 
ceases to exit. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately 
in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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3.11 Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 

The Company follows a 'three·stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

• 

• 

• 

Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL 

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default 

and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PO) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default 

occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be 

lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest 

accrued and outst:'nding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAD 

and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than wans 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets 

has increased Significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since 

initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as 

at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial 

recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 

without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial 

recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the 

balance sheet date. 

Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped 

pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial AuthOrity. 
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3.12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short­

term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.13 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors 

respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are 

recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Company. 

3.14 Material prior period errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the 

prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period 

presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are 

restated. 

3.15 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.16 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or 

directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 

income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint 

ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company 

and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits ""ill be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

....,J~ __ !;,.!related tax benefit will be realized. 
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Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in 

profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or equity, respectively. 

3.17 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid 

annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non­

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect of 

the employees into a separate fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay 

further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the 

Company towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the 

contributions relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and Other 

Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans covering 

eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on 

retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and other defined 

parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan assets for 

funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Company's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit 

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The 

liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of 

the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. 

Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one­

year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an 

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 



Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction 

value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the 

unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected 

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis. 

3.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company 

and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure reqUired to settle the present obligation, based on 

the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties 

associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time 

value of money is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be reqUired to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 

be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning 

the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the 

related asset is disclosed. 

3.19 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell ~he asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

2. '1 



participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

into account a market participant'S ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements regularly, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.20 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities Simultaneously. 

3.21 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same 

party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using 

the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise significant accounting policies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is 

aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. The 

identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 



The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3.22 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account 

4. Implementation of Newl Modified Standards 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind AS. 

The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Company. 

5. Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 

liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Significant management judgments 
Recognition of deferred tax assets! liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 

is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax 
assets Can be utilized. Further, the Company Management has no intention to make withdrawal from 

the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and 
thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the company 
does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - Interest income on credit-impaired 
loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of 

stressed assets. 

Significant estimates 
Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak - The Company has considered the possible impacts of COVID-19 in 

preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and 

going COncern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on 
revenue recognition and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Company has carried out this 
assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of 

these standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVfD.19 is not material to these 
financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 
on the standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these 

standalone financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19. The extent to which the 
Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Company will depend on future developments, which are 

uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the Covid-19 
pandemic and any further action by the Gov!. or the Company to contain its spread or mitigate its 
impact. 



Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 

utility of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 

future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and 

the annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 

estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the 

extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy 
is used for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, 

including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of 

expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit loss ('ECl') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial 

assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and Significant assumptions 
about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and 

resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing 

expected credit loss to estimate ECl: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 
productJ market and the associated ECL; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL. 
• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 

case of default) 



6 C.sh and C.sh Equiv.lents 

P.rtkul .... 

- C.sh in Hand (including post.ge &: imprest) 
- B.lances with B.nko 
- in current accounts 

- deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 
Total (C.sh &: Cash Equiv.lents) 

7 Bank B.lances (other than C.sh and Cash Equivalents) 

Pamcula15 

.. Earmarked Balances with Banks 
. For unpaid dividends 

- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 

- Earmarked Term Deposils 
- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 
- Tenn Deposit held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee 
- Term Deposit- Debenture Redemption Reserves 

.. Balances with banks not available for use pending 
allotment of 54EC Capital G.in T.x Exemption Bonds 

Total (Other Bank Balances) 

- Term Deposits held as margin money against Bank Guarantee for 

more than 12 m onths 

~ in Crores) 

As.t 31-12-2022 As .t 31-03-2022 

0.06 0.02 

195.89 124.01 

4.55 2.37 

200.50 126.40 

~ in Crores) 

As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

6.36 6.39 

69.71 771.18 

0.62 0.59 

- 0.27 

12.78 225.33 

878.14 1,291.54 

967.61 2,295.30 

0.27 
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8 Derivative Financial Instruments 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include 
hedges that are either deSignated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges. The table below shows 
the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. 

Part I 
(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

Notional Fair Value - Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-

Amounts Assets Uabilities Amounts Assets Uabilities 

Currency Derivatives 

- Currency swaps 3,104.48 14.08 10.33 2,850.13 1.39 48.37 
-Others 

- Call Spread 2,069.66 196.94 - 1,895.18 76.73 -
- Seagull Options 75,072.97 7,552.50 87.74 54,727.54 4,868.28 - I 

Sub-total (i) 80,247.11 7,763.52 98.07 59,472.85 4,946.40 48.37 

Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 35,394.64 717.22 300.56 33,239.41 563.77 173.52 
Sub-total (ii) 35,394.64 717.22 300.56 33,239.41 563.77 173.52 
Other derivatives 

- Reverse cross currency swaps 4,747.00 - 523.37 4,747.00 - 331.25 
Total- Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 1,20,388.75 8,480.74 922.00 97,459.26 5,510.17 553.14 



.. • 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

Part II 

Included in rart [ are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

(~ in Crores) 

farticuLus As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

Notional Fair Value - FairValue- Notional Fair Value - Fair Value -

Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Fair Value Hedging 

- Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 15,950.70 5.58 296.57 11,850.70 19.76 112.00 

Sub-total (i) 15,950.70 5.58 296.57 11,850.70 19.76 112.00! 

Cash Flow Hedging 

- Currency Derivatives 

- Currency Swaps 3,104.48 14.08 10.33 2,842.77 - 48.37 

-Others 

- Call Spread 2,069.66 1%.94 - 1,895.18 76.73 -
- Seagull Options 75,072.97 7,546.53 66.68 54,727.54 4,868.28 -

- Interest Rate Derivatives 
- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 12,743.94 361.61 3.99 13,313.21 115.10 45.27 

Sub-total (ii) 92,991.05 8,119.16 81.00 72,778.70 5,060.11 93.64 

Undesignated Derivatives 11,447.00 356.00 544.43 12,829.86 430.30 347.50 
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 1,20,388.75 8,480.74 922.00 97,459.26 5,510.17 553.14 

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting dale. The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of fair value hedges, the changes in fair value of the 

derivatives designated as hedging instruments along with th~ges in the carrying amount of the hedged items are recognised in the Statment 

of Profit & Loss. For undesignated derivatives, the changes i . ~ .... are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss . 
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9 Loans 
The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(AI 
(i) 

(ii) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

Particulars 

Loans 
Term Loans 

Working Capital Term Loans 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Security Details 

Secured by tangible assets 

Covered by Bank! Govt. Guarantees 

Unsecured 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

) Loans in India (C)(I 

(i) 

(ii) 

Public Sector 

Private Sector 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

(C)(I I) Loans outside India 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (A) - Gross Loans 

Total (A) - Net Loans 

Total (B) - Gross Loans 

Total (8) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(O - Gross Loans 

Total (0(1) - Net Loans 

Tolal (0(11) - Net Loans 

Total (0(1) and (0(11) 

As at 31-12-2022 

Principal O/S Amortised Cost 

4,07,771.19 4,09,077.47 

3,376.98 3,397.90 

4,11,148.17 4,12,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

2,32,031.78 2,32,510.76 

1,51,880.77 1,52,651.02 

27,235.62 27,313.59 

4,11,148.17 4,12,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

3,71,868.82 3,73,197.72 

39,279.35 39,277.65 

4,11,148.17 4,12,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.U 

- -
- -
- -

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

~inC , , 
As at 31-03-2022 

Principal 0/. Amortised Cost 

3,83,310.40 3,84,566.08 

2,060.86 2,069.12 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66) 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

2,23,793.64 2,24,420.98 

1,30,973.50 1,31,510.35 

30,604.12 30,703.87 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66) 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

3,50,455.72 3,51,732.04 

34,915.54 34,903.16 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66: 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

- -
-

- -
3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 
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10 Investments 

Particulars 

As at 31st Deeember, 2022 
Govt. Securities 
Debt Securities 
Equity Instruments 
Preference Shares 
Others 
Total - Gross (A) 

Investments outside India 
Investments in India 
Total· Gross (B) 
Total Investments 
Less: impairment loss allowance (0 
Total - Net (D=A-C) 

As at 31st March, 2022 
Govt. Securities 
Debt Securities 
Equity Instruments 
Preference Shares 
Others 
Total - Gross (A) 
Investments outside India 
Investments in India 
Total- Gross (B) 
Total Investments 
Less: impairment loss allowmce (0 
Total- Net (D=A-C) 

Amortised 

Cost Through Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

(1) (2) 

1,429.69 -
791.45 -

- 395.50 
28.72 -

-
2,249.86 395.50 

. -
2,249.86 395.50 
2,249.86 395.50 
2,249.86 395.50 

(28.72) · 
2,221.14 395.50 

1,374.51 · 
333.03 · 

- 268.26 
28.72 · 

- · 
1,736.26 268.26 

. -
1,736.26 268.26 
1,736.26 268.26 
1,736.26 268.26 

(28.72) -
1,707.54 268.26 

(l in Crores) 
At fair value Sub·total Others (At Total 

Through profit Designated at fair Cost) 

orIoss value through 
profit or loss 

(3) (4) (5= 1+2+3-+4) (6) (7) 

- - 1,429.69 - 1,429.69 

331.59 - 1,123.04 - 1,123.04 
36.56 432.06 0.10 432.16 

- - 28.72 - 28.72 

· -· -
368.15 · 3,0t3.51 0.10 3.013.61 

- - -- . 
368.15 - 3,013.51 0.10 3,013.61 

368.15 - 3,013.51 0.10 3,0t3.61 
368.15 - 3,013.51 0.10 3,013.61 

- - (28.72) - (28.72) 

368.15 - 2.984.79 0.10 2984.89 

· · 1,374.51 - 1,374.51 
132.55 · 465.58 . 465.58 

49.52 317.78 0.10 317.88 
- · 28.72 - 28.72 
- · -· -

182.07 - 2.186.59 0.10 2186.69 
- - · - -

182.07 · 2,186.59 0.10 2,186.69 
18i07 - 2,186.59 0.10 2,186.69 
182.07 · 2,186.59 0.10 2,186.69 

· - (28.72) . (28.72) 
182.07 - 2.157.87 0.10 2.157.Q7 



11 Other financial assets 

The Company has categorised all the components under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of 
Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(B) 

(e) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

Particulars 

lo&n. to Employ .... 

Advances to Employees 

Loans" Advances to Subsidiaries 

Security Deposito 

Recoverable from Govt. of India 

. Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amounts !'Koverable 

less: Impairment Loss allowance 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

12 Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Advance lncome--tax " TDS 

Provision for Income Tax 

Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tax assets (Net) 

13 Deferred tax assett (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

A. aI31-12-2022 

44.43 

0.79 

6.49 

1.50 

24,621.01 

129.89 

(90.24) 

39_65 

Total (A 10 F) 24,713.87 

A. 0131-12-2022 

2,543.68 

(1,951.46) 

Sub-Total 592.22 

5.20 

(0.25) 

Sub-Tolal 4.95 

597.17 

As aI31-12-2022 

3,592.87 

(~. e In rores 
A. aI31~3-2022 

41.95 

0.24 

5.26 

1.64 

24,318.29 

120.24 

(90.68) 

29.56 
24,396.94 

(~in Crores 
A •• 131~-2022 

3,284.80 

(3,110.11) 

174.69 

5.20 

(0.25) 

4.95 

179.64 

(~ in erores) 

A •• 131~3-2022 

3,134.74 

)1 



14 Property. PlMlt k Equipment.QId lnbnpbJe..u..m 

(t inCro,": Putievlan p~. Plant k Equiplllftli ~pital Work-in- Iftbnpble 0tMr lnlanpble ........ A..n.vnder -Dnelopawnt 
frfthold iMld Ripl-of-UM Buildinp PI_t. Fvmihlre. ED, Offiu VelUd" T .... IDUIloYilbie Compulft' """'pu'" ..... equip_t , ...... Equipmm. EquipillGl. ......., Softw_ Softw_ 

C .... anyins Yall'e 

As at 31.03.20'21 nO.39 1.59 130." ,.,. 21 ... 17.10 .... 302." 335.67 ." " ... 
AdditioN 284.01 19.90 33:16 2.02 .52 343.11 "'" 1.01 
Borrowinp Cost Clpiul~ '.60 
"-'" 3.30 0.31 057 0.67 .... 334.65 0." . 
As aI31.12.2011 110.39 1.59 4n.11 19.90 '1>' 23." ,. ... ... .... " 34.21 ,." 
As at 31.03.2021 110.39 1.59 ... .., 19.90 67.41 ,. .. 23.31 ... 6".96 6.IT1 ,." 
Additions 0.16 '29 .... 5.23 0.113 11_'" .. I 0.01 
Borrowinp Cosl Capiuu.ed 

DiIposalsI Adjustments . 0." 1.37 1.69 ... 
As at 31.12.202% 110.39 1.59 ....., ,. ... ..." ,.." ,.." ." .... 11 .... 1<6' 

Acaua1lkled depred&dosal mMn1iution 
As al 31.03.2011 . D.3S Ul . , ... , ... , • .62 .... fl." , ... 
CluIrge for the period 0.02 3.46 0.63 2.39 ,,, 1.68 0.02 10.39 W 
Ad~~rdb~~ 1.26 0.11 0.40 025 "" As .. t 31.12.2011 \J.37 ll.Ol •. " .... 16:l6 ll.OS . ... SO.36 . ... 
As a131.03.2011 \J.37 "., 0." 1 ... , .. , ".64 .." 'U. lC1.41 
Ctw-ge for the period 0.01 5.16 0.96 .... '57 "6 0.02 15." '\8 
Adjustrnmt for dispouls 0.21 1.06 0.99 0.01 ", 
As at 31.12.2021 0.31 18.67 1." 1 .... 18.32 13.11 0.38 67.62 1>59 

Net blod ... at 31.C13.2012 110.39 1.22 417.31 I." 56." ,-" 11.74 0Il3 623.67 '.G1 4.25 
Net block ... at 31.12.2011 "039 Ul 412.16 U.15 53." 8.45 " ... . .,. 618.09 . ... .." 

~ 



15 Other non·financial assets 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 
(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 
Unsecured, considered good 
Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Govt. Authorities 

Pre-Spenl Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

Prepaid Expenses 

Deferred Employee Benefits 
Other Assets 

Total (A 10 G) 

16 Assets Classified as Held for Sale 

Particulars 
Assets Classified as Held for Sale--Building 

Total 

As 0131·12·2022 

As aI31·12·2022 

(~inCro ..... l 
As 0131-03-2022 

8.39 8.19 

10.76 2.88 

28.28 20.35 
. 0.40 

19.41 3.11 

10.70 11.11 

0.01 0.Q2 

77.55 46.06 

{~in Crores 
As 0131-03·2022 

0.58 0.86 

0.58 0.86 

.J> 



17 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 

(iv) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 

(i) 
(ii) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised. cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(~in Cmres' 
Particulars As at 31.12.2022 As .t 31.03.2022 

Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortiaed Cost 
Secured Long·Term Debt Securities 
Institutional Bonds 1,955.00 1,980.SO 1,955.00 2,065.31 
54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 33,004.89 33,804.64 2U46.13 25,025.49 
Tax Free Bonds 10,388.43 10,544.28 11,808.74 12,205.52 
Bond Application Money 878.14 877.85 1,291.54 1,291.13 
Sub-total (A) 46,226.46 47,207.27 39,201.41 40,587.45 
Unsecured Long·Term Debt Securities 
Institutional Bonds 1,38,859.50 U3,355.96 1,44,086.60 1,49,010.97 
Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 8.55 3.96 8.00 
Foreign Currency Bonds 33,114.48 32,876.26 30,322.85 30,027.15 
Sub-total (B) 1,71,977.94 1,76,240.77 1,74,413.41 1,79,046.12 
Total- Debt Securities (A.B) 218.204.40 223448.04 213 614.82 2.1963357 
Debt Securities issued in! outside India 
Debt Securities in India 1,85,089.92 1,90,571.78 1,83,291.97 1,89,606.42 
Debt Securities outside India 33,114.48 32,876.26 30,322.85 30,027.15 
Total· Debt Securities 218204.40 2~,448.04 213614.82 21963357 

18 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(8) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has categOrised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of 
Ind AS 109. 

~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31.12.2022 As .t 31.03.2022 
Prindpal 0/. Amortised Cost Principal 0/, Amortised Cost 

Unsecured Long· Term Borrowings 
Term Loans from Banks 51,152.15 51,250.92 42,878.32 42,919.86 

Term Loans from Financial Institutions 5,500.00 5,500.00 6,800.00 6,800.00 

Tenn Loan in Foreign Currency 42,664.16 42,444.73 35,634.60 35,329.87 

Tenn Loans from Govt. of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12 

Lease Liability 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 

Sub-total (A) 1,09,316.34 1,09,317.99 95,312.95 95,374.88 

Unsecured Short·Term Borrowings 
FCNR (8) Loans 14,487.57 14,488.77 9,854.92 9,861.13 

Short Term Loans! Loans repayable on demand from Banks 4,919.92 4,925.95 1,410.93 1,415.58 

Sub-total (B) 19,407.49 19,414.72 11,265.85 11,276.71 

Total· Borrowinas (other than Debt Securities) (A to B) 1,28,723.83 1,28,732.71 1,06,578.80 1,06,651.59 

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in! outside India 

Borrowings in India 86,059.67 86,287.98 70,944.20 71,321.72 

BorrOWings outside India 42,664.16 42,444.73 35,634.60 35,329.87 

Total· Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 1,28,723.83 1,28,732.71 1,06,578.80 1,06,651.59 

19 Subordinated Liabilities 
The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(~ in Crores) 

Particulars A. at 31.12.2022 As at 31.03.2022 
Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost 

(i) 115th Series· Subordinate Tier·1I Bonds - 2,500.00 2,618.59 2,SOO.00 2,668.11 

8.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023 
(ii) 175th Series· Subordinate Tier-II Bonds· 2,151.20 2,206.00 2,151.20 2,100.70 

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
(iii) 199th Series· Subordinate Tier-II Bonds· 1,999.50 1,970.87 1,999.50 2,047.66 

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 

Total. Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 6,795.46 6,650.70 6,816.47 

Subordinated Liabilities in! outside India 
6,650.70 6,795.46 6,650.70 6,816.47 

6,650.70 6,795.46 6,650.70 6,816.47 



20 Other Financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividendi (A) 

(B) Bond AppJication Money refundable and intereat accrued thereon 

(0 Unpaid Principal "Interat on Bonds. 

- Matured &nds &: Interest Accrued thereon 

- Interest on Bonds 

Sub-total (C) 

(0) Funds Received from Covt. of India for Di.buratment as Subsidy/ 

(E) 

(F) 

Grant (cumulative) 
Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 

Less: Disbursed 10 Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy/Grant 

PaYilbles towards Bond. Fully serviced by Gon. of India 
Other Uabilities 
Total (A to F) 

21 CUl'ftnt tu UablUtiH (net) 

Particulars 
Provision for Income Tax 

Less: Advance Income-tax" TDS 

Current tax liabilities (Net) 

22 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions fOT 

(A) Employee Benefltl 

Gratuity 

Earned Leave Liability 

Post Retirement Medical Benefits 

Medical leave Liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 
Long Service Award 
Incentive 

Pay Revision 

(B) Others 

Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

23 Other Non-financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

(f) 

Particulars 

Income Received in Advance 

Sundry Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation) 

Unbilled Liability towards Capital Account 

Unamortised Fee on. Undisbursed Loans 
Advance received from Govt. towards Govt. Schemes 
Statutory Dues 
Total (A to F) 

Sub-total (A) 

Sub-total (8) 
Total (A+B) 

(~in Crores 
As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

6.36 6.39 

om -

25.75 22.01 

12.04 6.72 

37.79 28.73 

95.304.84 95.578.81 

2.64 3.95 

(95.234 .27) (94,8V8.08) 

73.21 774.68 

24.653.53 24.318.29 

425.20 447.75 

25.196.10 25,575.84 

It in Crores) 
A. at 31-12-2022 AI at 31-03-2022 

- 18.01 

- (7.76) 

- 10.25 

(~in Crores 
As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03·2022 

2.55 0.34 

25.21 25.17 

- 0.71 

21 .49 21.49 

1.82 1.79 

4.01 4.15 

2.39 2.25 

29.44 27.71 

18.99 -
105.90 83.61 

20.29 20.90 

20.29 20.90 

126.19 104.51 

(~ in Crores) 

As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

0.28 -
3.13 4.\0 

27.75 26.96 

19.11 28.72 

- 0.75 

19.34 21.11 

69.61 81.64 



at Equity Shaft c.pltaJ 

Particulan 

AUthOriHd : 
Equity shares of ~ 10 elCh 

I .. wed, Subloihd ud PaJd up: 
FuUy pm up Equity shares of ~ 10 efCh 

T .... 

25 IrutnllMnts nUnly equity In nahb 

(A. 
Ii) 

(II) 

(IUJ 
(iv) 

(Iv) 

M ,n. 
'". 
'0 

Particulan 

Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity In nature of ~ 10 lakhs tach 

T .... 

Particulan 
Other Re.e"" 

Speda) RtsHVe c,..aled uJs 36(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Raer¥t '0# lad aM doubt"" debts u/a36(I)(rii&, of the)n(ome T .. Act. 1961 

Resrrve Fund u/s 45-le of Reserve 8ank of lndia Act. 1934 

Debenture RNtmption Reserve 
Securities Premium 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Attount 

General RKerve 

Rdained Eamlnp 
Otter ComptfllmtlYe InCOlftt (OCI) 
- Equity wtrunwnb through Other Com~i_lncomc 

- EffKbve Portion of Cash Flow Hedses 
- Cost of Heclaing reserve 

Total· Other Equity 
. . 

Addillons and dtdwc/lOl1S to tilt cornpontn's of Otllff &,Wlty Iuts bMI dISClosed lit Sla'rmmf ofClIolIII.feS In Eq/ll/y . 

AI at 31.l1.202l 

No. of Shua Amoont 

5,00,00.00.000 5,000.00 

2.63.32.24,,000 2.633.22 

2.63,.12,2 .... 100 2.633.22 

A. at 31.11.2Q22 

Number Amount 

5,584 558.40 

5 .... ...... 

A.at31.U.2Ol2 

24.286.84 

7,425.1.5 

1,577.53 

(874.51) 

11,978.4( 

9,115.27 

(90.24) 

552.93 

(2,323.13) 

51,648.22 

m ro'H 
AI at 31.03.2022 

No. of Slwel AmOWlt 

5,00,00.00,000 5,000.00 

1.97.49,18,000 1,97(.92 

1,91,49,18,000 1,914.92 

m ,.,... 
A. &1 31.03.lO22 

N .... "" AMOUlI 

5,584 558.40 

..... 558." 

m ro", 
A. II 31.03.2022 

22,302.93 
,96.82 

5.814.00 

-
2,236.54 

(555.29) 

11,781.62 

6,915.38 

(37.98) 

194.21 

(395.95) 

48,452.28 



21 Intere •• Income 

IAI 
(I) 

(11) 

(81 

(11 

(el 
(1) 

(01 
(i) 

(III 

(111) 

Partindus 

Intefttl on Lou Ailu .. 

Long lenn financing 

Less: Rebate frx timely payments/completion etc 

Long tenn financing (net) 

Short tenn financ:ing 

Sub-toW (A) 

Interetllncome from Investments 

Interest from Long Tenn investments 

Sub-total (B) 

Inlerest on Depo.Us With Bankl 

Interest from Deposits 

SuiMoW(C) 

Other Interest Income 

lnterest on Delayed Payments by Borrowers 

Interest from Staff Advances 

Interest on MobUisation AdvU'lCe 

Sub-total (D) 

TotaJ -lnterHt Income (A to D) 

28 Dividend Income 

Particulus 

- Dividend from SubsidiaryCompanin 

• Dividend from Other Investments 

Tot.I- Dividend Income 

29 Fees and Commllslon Income 

Particulars 

Fee; based income 

Prepayment Premium 

F~ for Implementation of Govt. Schemes 

Total · Fees and Commission lncom~ 

JO Oth~r Incom~ 

Particulus 

Net gainl (loss) on de-recosnition of Property. Plant and Equipment 
Gilin on reasation of significant influence in Joint Venture 

Net gainl (loss) on disposal of assets dassmN. as held for sale 

Rental Income 

Fee from Trainmg COUrRt 

Miscellaneous Income 

Total - Other Income 

Period endtod 31-12.-2022 

Onflnaftd.J On FiMncbl On Ftnandal 
A_tlIIMISUftd A ... ta _alU.ftd Auets rMI_d at 

at FalrVaJue at Alftortiard COlt Fair Value tJuoush 
thrvushOCI Pna"t or Lou: 

- 28,255.30 -
- (0.01) -
- 28,255.29 

- 201.01 -
28,456.30 -

- 111.42 21.57 

- 111.42 :21.57 

- 81.50 

- 01.50 -

168.39 -
- 2.30 -
- 0.20 

110.90 -
28.820.12 21.57 

Period ended 31-12.-2Ol2 

14.77 

9.57 

2t.34 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

90.97 

36.44 

25.27 

152.68 

P~riod ended 31-12·2022 

3.20 
12.81 

7.06 
10.83 
33.98 

'" .. (~ . Cror ) 
Period ended 3142-2.021 

Ott FinandaJ Onfinutdal Onflnandai 
AlMtlmealM&ftd AINU IMlSUNd A....u Dl.1I .... td at 

at Fair Value at AmmtlMd Coat Fair Value throush 

.... ""'OCI Profit or Lo ... 

- 28,425.24 

- (0.03) 

- 28,425.21 

- 150.37 -
- 28,575.58 -

78.20 26.46 

- 78.20 26.46 

46.60 

- 46.6. 

- J41.07 

- 3.10 

- 0.18 

144.35 

- 28..814.73 26.46 

f!:inCroces 
Period ended 31-12-2021 

14.90 

1.72 
16.62 

(' in Crores) 

Period ended 31-12·2021 

59.42 

299.35 

1.5.23 

374.00 

(~ in Crores) 

Period end~d 31·12-2021 

25.33 
29.01 

1.71 

12.71 

5." 
1.93 

76.(9 

1\ 



32 finance Coab 

Finame Costs have been incumd on finandalliabilities measured at amortist'd cost. 

-.it in Crores 
PutiaaJ .... Pmod ended 31-12-2022 Period ended 31-12-2021 
InteNSt on Bormwtnp 

- Loans from Govt. of india 

- LQans from Banks! Fmandallnstitutions 
- Extemal Commerdal Borrowings 

Sub-TotAl (I) 
IU) Inl~.tt on Debt Securities 

- Domestic Debt Seanities 

- Fouign Cun-ency Debt Securities 

Sub-Total (U) 
(Ill) Intemt on Subordlna.ted Uablllties 

- Subordinate Bonds 

Sub-Total (UI) 

(Iv) Other Intere.t Expense 
- Swap Premium 

- Interest on liability towards employee benefits 

Sub-Total (Iv) 

Total - FinaMe Coils 

Less: Finance Costs Capitalised 
Total - Financ:t Coats (Net) 

32 Nel tran.lationltransactlon exchange 10sl1 (gain) 

(I) 

((I) 

(Iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Particulars 

Net translationl transaction exchange Iossl (gain) 

PutlaJm, 

Cuarantee Fee 

Llsting and Trusteeship feto 

Agency Fees 

Credit Rating Expenses 

Other Finance Charges 

Tout 

Tolal (I to v) 

34 Net Gainl (loss) on f .. ir Value Changes 

(A) 

(I) 

(ii) 

Parllculus 
Nrl saini (Iou) on finaneJ.llnstnunenls at Fair Value 

through profit or 10 •• 
On tr.adlnS Portfolio 

Oth.n 
-Chan~1I in fair value of Derivatives 

-Changet in f'tf value of Long Term Jnvestments 

-Chang6 in fair value of Short-term MF investments 
Sub-tot&! (u) 

Tot&! (A) 

To .... Net GalnI (los.) on Fair Value Changes 

Pmod ended 31-12-2022 

Period ended .U-12-2022 

Period ended 31-U-20Z2 

619.69 617.44 
2,.753.69 2.106.07 
1,116.88 386.88 

",,".2' 3,120.39 

9,888.62 11,l4HO 
1,073.41 956.93 

10,962.0.1 12,.105.35 

4Q4.63 407.74 
4Q4.63 407.74 

1,379.18 879.35 
4.22 2.60 

1,383." 881.95 

17,240.32 16,7OS.43 

- (5.60) 
17.2t0.32 26,699.83 

(' in Cro es) , 
Period ended 31-12-2021 

1,144.25 327.87 

1,144.25 317.87 

(f' C m ... , .. 
Period ended 31-12-2021 

2.19 3.22 

0.05 0.81 

0.91 0.97 
2.67 6.47 

5.53 0.84 
11.3S 12.31 

(' in Crores 
Period atdtd 31·12-202] 

- -
91.15 291.13 

(15.36) (1.62) 

0.29 1.01 

76.08 290.58 

7 .... 290'" 
76.08 290.58 .. 

Fit" I)tIl~ chltngn In thIS seMdul. lire tither fhlln fhese AnsmS on Iteoounf of IIccrued Inferest mCDme! apt1I5t lind rqremtts dwrnga m fllir wille Of dnftldfulitS desrglUfftd «$ l'oommuc 

htdgl'J not tlnigtNftnJ I.Cnder Ndgt lteanmHng Itnd ineJ!«liw Jwdge 

35 Impillrment on ffnandal instrument' 

Partieuloln Period mdt!d 31-12-2012 

(I) - loins· 

(Ii) -lnvestmt nti 

(Il) -<>then 

On financiAl instruments 
mt!uured at FVOCI 

On finandal in.truments 
meA,Uftd oil Amorti.ed Cost 

429.55 

5.01 

(' in Crores) 
Pu:lod ended 31-12-2021 

On financial instruments 
1H.u~d at FVOCJ 

On finUldallnstnunenb 
ZMatured .t Amortised Cosl 

2683.58 
2872 



36 Employee Benefits EqJen.e 

PuticuJan 

- Salaries and AJlow~ces 

- Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 

- Expenses towards Post EmpJoyment Benefits 
- Rent towards Residential Accomodation for Employees 
- Staff Welfare Exper'\Se5 

Tolal 

37 Deprtdation and amortization 

PartiMUS 

- Depreciation on Property. Pl~t &: Equipment 
- Amortization on Intangible Asseb 

ToW 

38 Corporate Social Re'pon.ibllity Expm.es 

Particulan 

- Dire<1 Expenditun! 
-Overheads 

Tolol 

39 Other Expenses 

Particulan 

-Travelling and Conveyvu:e 

- Publlc:ity &: Promotion Expmse5 
- Repairs and Maintenance 
- Rent. taxes and energy cosb 
- Insurance Charges 
- Communication costs 
- Printing &: stationery 
- Director's sitting fees 

· Auditors' fees and expenses 
- leglll &: Professional Charges 

- Net Loss on Disposal of Property. Plant &: Equipmmt 

• Training And Confenmct Expmse 
- GOyt. Scheme MonitOring Expenses 

- Other Expenditure 
Tolol 

Partlculan 

· Cumnt tax expense 

• Cumnt tax expensel (benefit) pertaining to earHer years 

Sub-Iolal - Cunent Tax 

- Deferred lax expensel (credit) 
TotAll 

41 Euninp per Share 

lor the period from continuing operation, as 
ISt.t,""ntof Profit and Loss (t in Crores) 

for the peirod from continuing and 
iOp"""",,as per Statement 01 Profit and loss (t in Crores) 

I~::~.v:c'ragc Number of equity shares" 

&: Diluted Earnings per Share (in t for an equity share 
10 each) (for continuing operations) 

&: Diluted Earnings per Share (in t for an equity 

Period endtd 31-12-2022 

114.74 

10.27 

3.03 
3.96 

24.44 

156.44 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

15.66 

2.18 

17.84 

Period ended. 31-12-2022 

109.92 

4.97 
11f.89 

Period ended. 31-12-2022 

10.25 

4.90 

14.22 

4.24 

0.14 

1.82 

0.80 

0.29 

0.75 

9.11 

1.66 

• . 93 .... 
16.82 

81.57 

Period mded 31-12-2022 

1.952.04 

(147.29) 

1,8M.75 

69.07 
1,813.82 

8,053.13 

8,053.73 

2,63,32.24.000 

3O.S' 

30.59 

tlOeach.s 

date i.e. 18th August 2022. A«ordingly. as 

(t · C on ",res 
Period ended 31-U-2021 

90.27 

7.92 

6.11 

2.58 

16.42 

123.30 

(t · C on "' ... 
Period ended 31-12-2021 

10.39 

2.14 

12.53 

on ,es (0 ' Do ) 
Period ended 31-]2-2021 

56.55 

' .05 ..... 
it in Cm 

Period mded 31-U-2021 

7.25 

1.11 

15.85 

4.90 

0.08 

2.00 
0.59 

0.10 

0.77 

7.50 

5.98 

19.24 

16.32 

I 81.69 

(0 ' C '" "'", 
Period ended 31-12·2021 

2,377.84 

2,377." 

(544.10) 
1,833.14 

7,758.04 

7,758.04 

2,63,32,24..000 

29.46 

29.46 

", 



AM':rt1JC:E 

RECUmilod 
Resl.teml Offl«· CorM, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road. New ~Ihi .110003, ON: lAOl01DLl969GOIOQ:5095 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2022 
(~ inCro~) 

S.No. Partiadart Note Alat AI at 

No. 31·12·1022 31.()3.2021 

ASSETS 
(J) Finand.l A.sets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents • 211.56 140.99 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 7 1,350.00 2.518.96 
(e) Trade receivables • 102.71 94.55 
(d) Derivative fina.nc:ial instruments • 8,480.74 5,510.17 
(e) loa", " 3,97,887.12 3,7J.93O.54 

m lnvubnents II 3,017.66 2.190.44 
(8) Other financial assets 12 2-4,754.52 24,415.31 

Total· Fi,umtiGl Assets (l) 4,35,80&.31 4.06.800.96 

(2) Non-Finudal AlMtI 
(.) Current tax assets (net) " 597.26 191.56 
(b) Defert1!d tax asset5 (ndl " 3.622.1. 3,160.12 

(e) Property, Plant &: Equipment IS 618.34 624.04 

(d) Capital Work-in-Progress IS 6.8. 6.07 

(e) Other Intangible Assets IS 2 .10 4.28 

m Other non-financi.1 assets I. 93.15 68.68 

Total - NOM-Financial ASRts (2) 4.939.89 4,054.75 

(3) A..NtI cl ... W..4" held for sale 17 12.25 • .38 

Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 4,40,156-'5 ',10,860.09 

UABILmES AND EQUITY 

L1ABILmES 
(J) Finand.l UablUtle. 

C·) Derivative financial instruments • 922.00 553.14 

(b) Trade PayablH 

(i) total outstanding dues of MSMEs I. 0.01 . 
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs I. 28.24 36.48 

(e) Debt Securities 19 2,23,.02.32 2.19,574.61 

Cd) BorrOWingS (other than debt securitie.) 2. 1,28,732.71 1,06,651 .59 

Ce) Subordinated Uabilities 21 6,795.46 6,816.47 

(0 Other finandaJ liabilities 22 25,460.25 25.108.64 

Tot., - fi,uulci.1 LiGbilitin (l) 3,85"".99 3,59,340.93 

(2) Non-Finandal Liabilitie. 
(a) Current tax lIabUities (net) 23 . 10.25 

(b) Provisions 2& 126.56 105.67 

(e) Other non-financial liabilities 2S n.68 89.1 3 

Total - Ntm-Fi,..1fCi41 Lutl.ilitWs (Z) 199.24 205." 
(3) UabiUtle. directly AssociAted with .... ta classified •• Mid for Nle 11 0.01 0.01 

C<) EQUITY 
(.) Equity Share Capital 2. 2,633.22 1,974.92 

(b) Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 27 558.40 558 . .0 

(e) Other equity 28 52.024.S9 48,780.78 

Tot.'- Eqtdty (fJ 55,216.21 51,3J4.10 

Tot.' - LlABlLmES AND EQlll7Y (1+2+3+4) 4,40,756.45 4.10,860.09 

Compuy Overview and Significlftl Accounling pond .. lto5 



RECUmited 
Registered Office· Core-t, SCOPE Complex. 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi· 110003, ClN: UOIOIDLt969GOl005095 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December, 2022 

S.No. Particulars Note Priod ended 

No. 31·12·2022 

Revenue from Operations 

(i) Interest Income 2. 28,847.89 

(il) Dividend Income 30 9.57 

(iii) Fees and Commission Income 31 152.68 

(iv) Net gainl (loss) on fair value changes 37 76.08 

(v) Sale of services 32 148.98 

1. Total Revenue from Operations (ilo Y) 29,235.20 

11. Other Income 33 30.33 

lit. Total Income (1+11) 29,265.53 

Expenses 

(i) Finance Costs .. 17,237.11 

(ii) Net translation! transaction exchange loss 3. 1.144.25 

(iii) Fees and commission Expense 3. 11.35 

(iv) Impairment on financial instruments 38 451.95 

(v) Cost of services rendered 3. 31.56 

(vi) Employee Benefits Expenses '" 174.86 

(vii) Depreciation and amortization 41 17.98 

(viii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 42 115.84 

(ix) Other Expenses 43 84.19 

lV. Total ExpenstS (i to ix) 19,269.09 

v. Profit before Tax (III·IV) 9,996.44 

Vl. Shaft of PtofitiLon of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method -
VlI. Profit before Tax (1II.1V+VJ) 9,996.44 

VIII. Tax Expense .. 
(i) Cunenttax 1.829.67 

(ii) Deferred Tax 65.16 

Total Tax Expense (i+ii) 1.894.83 

IX. Profit for the period 8,101.61 

X. Other comprehensive Income/(Lon) 

(i) lIems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(.) Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit p lans (2.36) 

(b) Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (".381 

«) Share of Other Comprehensive Income! (loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using 

equity method 

(d) Income tax relating to these items 

• Re-measurement gainsj(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.59 

• Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (0.32) 

Sub-Total (1) (46.e1) 

(iI) Items that will be reclassifjed to profit or Ion 

(.) Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 479.36 

(b) Cost of hedging reselVe 
(~'75,34 ) 

«) 
Share of Other Comprehensive Incomel (loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using 0.00 
~uity method 

(d) Income tax relating to these items 

-Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (120.64) 

- Cost of hedging reserve 
648.16 

Sub·Tobl. (ii) (1,568.46) 

Other comprehensive Income/(Lon) for the period (i+ii) (l,61C.93) 

Xl. Total comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 6,486.68 

XII. Basic'" Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of '10 each (in ') ... 
(1) For continuing operations 30.71 

(2) For continuing and discontinued operations 30.71 

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies lt05 

B11T4~ <vc, LlMII'~ 0B ~ 0 
i New Delhi . ~ ~( Formerly 

)* ." '" * Rural Electrification 

1>~ ,$:''' 
CorporaliOn limited 

'?~D ACeO.;) tve'W6e\'(\\ 

(t in Crates 

Priod ended 

31-12-2021 

28,877.51 

1.72 

374.00 

290.58 

91.88 

29,635.69 

47.52 

29,683.21 

16,697.88 

327.87 

12.31 

2708.16 

47.54 

137.59 

12.74 

61.46 

92.63 

20,098.18 

9,585.03 

(11.81 

9,573.22 

2.387.34 

(548.49) 

1.838.85 

7,734.37 

0.51 

39.99 

(0.02) 

(0.13) 

(0.88) 

39.47 

147.94 

12.59 

1.19 

(37.231 

(18.27) 

166.22 

205.69 

7,940.06 

29.37 

29.37 

~&CO 
'<r,0 ~\SN/IV$l('-<> 
~ s;)(::;) i:2 

a."'~'$' ol~ -'lE 
... ~ ~Qe~\ .IJ 
~ II ;:f 
~'1'ii;ed P.cCO 

~ . 



RECLimited 
Reshlteftd Offke· Con-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lod.hl RO.J.d, New IHlhi - 110003, CIN: UOIOI0L1969G0IOOS095 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow. for the period ended 31st December 2022 
(f in Crores 

PARTlClJI.ARS Pmod ended 31-12-lO22 Period eaded 31-:1.2-2021 

A. Cuh Flow from Operating Activities: 
Net Profit before Tax 

AdjUlbnenta for: 

1. LossI (Cain) on dereoognition ofPtoperty, Plant and Equipment (net) 

2. Loss! (Gain) on derecognition of Assets held for sale (net) 

3. Depreciation &: Amortization 

4. Impairment ilUowanc:e on Assets Oassified as Held for Sale 

5. lmpainnent losses on Financial ln$truments 

6. Loss! (Gain) on Fair Value Otanges (net) 

7. Effective Interest Rate in respect oi Loan Assets and Bonowings 

8. Interest on Commercial Paper 

9. Unrealised Foreign Exchange Translation Loss! (Gain) 

10. Uabilities written back 

11 . Share of Profit/Loss ofJoine Ventu~ accounted for using equity method 

12. Interest on Investments 

Operating profit before Changes in Operating Assets &: Uabllities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on KtOUnt 01: 

1. Loan Assets 

2. Derivatives 

3. Other Financial and Non- financial Assets 

4. Other Financial and Non- Financial Liabilities Ie Provisions 

C .. h flow froo1. Operations 

1. Income Tax Paid (including lUS) 

2. Income Tax refund 

Net C .. h Flow from ap.ratins Activities 

B. Calh Flow from Investing Adivitie. 

1. Sille of Property, Plant &: Equip~t 

2. Sale of assets held lor sall! 

3. Investment in Property, Plant &: EqUipment (ind. CWIP &: Capital Advances) 

4. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets Wlder development) 

development &: Capibil Advances) 

5. Finance Costs Capitali.Hd 

6. Sale! (Investment) in Equity Shares and Venture Capital Fund 

7. Redemption! (Investment) in High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) (net) 

8. Redemption! (Investment) in Debt Securities other than HQl.As (net) 

9. Sale/(Investment) ofrm shares of associate companies (Net) 

10. Maturity/{Investment) of/in Corporate and Term deposits 

Net Cash Flow from In.,Hting Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Finandng Activities 

I . Issuel (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (Net) 

2. Issue! (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) 

3. Raising! (Repayments) of Rupee Tenn LoansJ WCDL from CovtJ 
Banks! PIs (net ) 

4. Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and 

Borrowings (net) 

S. Issue Expen$eS on Bonus Issue of Equity Shares 

6. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares 

7. Repayment towards Lease liability 

Net Cash flow from FinandnS AdivitiH 

Nellncre •• elDeaease In Cash" Calh Equivalenll 

Cash &: Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 

Cash &: Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period 

9,996." 9,573.22 

1.66 (25.33) 

(3.28) (1.71) 

11.99 12.73 

· 9.71 
451.95 2,708.16 

(15.19) (28'.51) 

(28.86) (106.19) 

· 6.02 

1,551.58 962.74 

1.30 . 
· 11..81 

(21.01) (38.22) 

11,891.98 12,822.83 

(26,556.69) (11,381.3') 

628.99 (530.'1) 

1f1J.77 691.30 
(738.99) (1,574.02) 

(14,064.94' 21.S1 

(2,245.02) (2,293.72) 

. 
(10,309.96) (2,165.91) 

0.05 26.90 

3.56 1.73 

(12.03) (41.76) 

(0.01) (0.24) 

(5.60) 

10.13 431.17 

(457.82) (S05.88) 

(184.74) 2137 

(8.14) 

(16.00) (5.30) 

(665.00) (77.61) 

1,797.93 (11,32 .... ) 

1.985.24 

10,482.7'9 2,473.19 

7,030.08 19,194.07 

(0.71) 

(2,2".56) (1,226.42) 

. (0.01) 

17.00.53 11,0'6.43 

7057 8,152.9] 

140.99 1,179.24 

211.56 9,932.15 
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Consolidilted Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December 2022 

A Eqllity ,Uft c.apiLIJ 
{f in CtOfU: .-... AI at 31-U-2022 "- at ll-G3-2Q2l 

~ I.t lhc btginrlins at the period. 1,.974.92 1,97"92 

~ in equity share apitaJ during the period. 6S8.JO 

Babnce .11 the end of tM period. ..... .22 1,97t.92 

Dminl the period. the Compu.y hat iMaed 65,&3,Di,.ooo eq1lity ,hues of~ 10 each u falIy paid-ap boa", IIa.ara in the ratio of 1 (One) equty than for every 3 ('T1uH) equty ,hAn oatltmdinB on IIlIe ~ard date i .•. 18th Aaptl2OZl. 

B Jutnunents entirely equity in ft.Itan: 
( f irlCrora 

Particalan As aI31-~2022 AI at 31-03-2022 

Balance at Ute begirlllin& of tIw ,mod ...... , ..... 
O\anges in instruments entirely equity in natu~ during the period 

Balance ~l ~ ~ of the ~ " .... 55UO 

C Other Eqaity 

'" 
FVOCl- Effective Toto! 

S<auI ... C.pi&al fOftip c.-.t ........ I CoonP ....... ; .. , Eq";", Portio. of .......... aoom<. c""""" ....... ........ lntwte:I (Iou) of IMtnmenti 
""'" flow 

A ....... ......... Joint VmhD'e ....... 
of hwIia A.d. 1 t .... 

1934 TRnI1.&tion rn_ 

3_00 1 U30.54 1 uo l 
A ...... I 

(573.16) 9,903.16 1 ~.01 1 n.l,,1 2U7 1 (tiS.6])1 ,us I 41.l3O.61 

7.73437 

0.38 

Othe, Comprth!r.ivel - I -
\ - I I - I \ - I (om'l 39.11 110.71 54.32 204.12 

1.19 1.19 

7.73t.'73 I 1.19 39.11 110.11 54.32 7, ...... 

tol (from) Retaintd Eamin~ J U1B~2 1 
(39:45)1 

1,552'()' 

to General Reserve 39.45 
of pW 0 ... ) on - 1 75.06 

of FVOCJ equity instTUnwnI 

Traruiation I..oa on ~ 

tho"""", ~I <30:",1 I~J 1 -;:1 ,;. .. 1 ,,-~.1 I C75J 202 ... 

".os 



oS 
~ 

Particulan 

Balan« u at 3111 Man::h 2022 

Profit for the period 

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans _tion 
tIvough Otho, Comprehensive 

Income (net of taxes) 

Reclassification of (gain)! loss on ceasation 0 

significant influence 
ToW Comprebensive Income 

TransferTed to! (from) Retained Earnings 

Transferred to! (from) General Reserve 

Reclassification of goW ~ ... ) on .... , 
extinguishment of FVOCI equity instrument (net 

01 """) 
Foreign Currency Translation Loss on long tenn 

monetary items durinlt the period 
Amortisation during the period 

Total- Other adjustments 

Bonus Issue of Equity Sha~ 

Expenses incurred on Bonus Issue of Equity 

Sha~ 

Dividends 

Dividend. Oistnbution Tax 

TotaI- Tramadion with owners 
Balance u at 3bl December 2021 

Speci.J..I Reserve ....... "" 
created ull 36(1) Bad and 

(viii) of the doubtful 

Income Tax Ad, debt. u)s 

'96' 36(l)(viia) of th._ 
YuAn,I961 

=" ,96.82 

-

-
-

-
1,983.91 -

(196.82) 

- -
1,.983.91 (196.82) 

24.286.84 -

Retervn 6: Swplus 

Reserve Fund Secarilin Capilal Foreign 
u)s4S-ICof Pmni~ R ...... C........." 

ReserveBuk A,,,,,,,,, Monetuy 
of India Ad, lIem 

19 .. Translation 

Difference 

Aexoont 

5,814.00 2.236-S4 - (.555.29) 

- - - -
- - -

- -

- -

- - - -
1,611.15 -

- -
- - -

- - (386.36) 

- 67.08 

U11.15 - (D9.28) 

(658.30) 

(0.71) 

-
-

- (659.01) - -
7..425.15 1.577.53 - 87 • .5 

Share of Other FVOCI- Effective """'of T .... 

"-.. ........ Comprehensive £Owly Portion of "_. ....... Euni ... Income! (loa) of Instruments caahFlow ....... 
Joint Venture Hedges 
accoanted for 

aainSeqaily ........ 
11,839.15 7,186.05 - (37.98) ''H-Zl (395.95) 48,780.78 

- &,101.61 - - - 8,101.61 

(1.77) - - - (1.77) 

- - - (44.70) 358.72 (1,927.18) (1,613.16) 

- -

- 8,.".'" - (44.70) 358-72 (1,921.18) ........ 
- (3,595.1)6) - -

196.82 

7.56 (7.56) - -

- (386.36) 

- - - - - 67.08 

'96.82 (3,587.50) - (7.56) - - (319.28) 

(65830) 

(0.71) 

- (~264.57) (~57) 

- - - -
- (2,2M.S7) - - - (2,.92358) 

7 • .82 - 90.2. 552.93 23.13 5= •. 60 
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Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company" or the "holding company") was incorporated in the year 1969. 

The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal 

place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-ll0003, India. The books of 

accounts and financial statements are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-

29, Gurugram, Haryana, in addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices 

spread across the country, mainly in the State Capitals and one training centre at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government Company engaged in extending financial assistance across the power 

sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-Banking 

Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

REC is a leading infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The Company together with its subsidiaries is hereinafter referred to as 'the Group'. 

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation 

These Consolidated Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and other applicable regulatory norms I guidelines. 

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31" December 2022 were authorized and 

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30" January 2023. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as 

given below: 

3.1 Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary is the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over 

the investee, is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of 

subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control 



holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 

income and expenses. 

Equity accounted investees 

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and joint 

venture. 

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity, over which the Company has significant 

influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in associates are 

accounted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at cost, which includes 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the 

Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (DCI) of eqUity-accounted investees 

until the date on which Significant influence ceases. However, in case where it is assessed that the 

investment! interest in associates is held for sale, the interest in associates is accounted for under Ind AS 

105. 

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets 

of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interests in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost 

which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements 

include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity­

accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 

3.2 Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra­

group transactions, are eliminated. Vnrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted 

investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. 

Vnrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that here is 

no evidence of impairment. 

3.3 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual 

system of accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities 

which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These polities have been 

applied conSistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The consolidated finantial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('lNR') which is also the functional 

currency of the Group. 

3.4 Income recognition 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 

rate applicable. 



Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs 

and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest 

including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for 

credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the 

complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including 

interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

(!BC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery 

thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 

rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on 

an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately 

under the head interest income. 

Interest income on credit-impaired loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending 

the outcome of resolutions of stressed assets. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest 

amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the 

corresponding interest income. 

Income from Government schemes 

Income of agency fee on Government schemes is reCOgnized on accrual basis based on the services 

rendered. 

Dividend income 

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on 

accrual basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established 

only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised 

separately under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Other services 

Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Group in the year of receipt. 

Revenue from sale of serviCt!s 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 

and the revenue can be reliably measured. 



The Group uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and when 

revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. In 

accordance with the same, revenue is recognised through a five-step approach: 

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer; 

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract; 

(iii) Determine the transaction price; 

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and 

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied. 

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts 

and other indirect taxes. 

In Cost Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures 

plus proportionate margin as per contract; 

In Fixed Price Contracts - Revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The 

Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total time 

expected to complete the performance obligation to that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period, 

which is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance 

obligations under Ind AS 115. 

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances 

change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss 

in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management. 

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put 

on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultimate 

collection of the professional charges will be made. 

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPY and sale 

proceeds of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted as 

income of the Group. 

3.5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and! or construction 

of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use, are 

capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its 

intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the 

effective interest rate method. 

3.6 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 

~. 



To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.7 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in 

the consolidated financial statements before 01" April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a 

"Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amortized over the balance 

period of such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated 

using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and initial measurement 
.L;md 

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not depreciated. 

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is amortised over the lease term. 

Other T an&ible assets 

PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs 

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by the Group's management. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Group beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Part 'C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use 

for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided @ 



The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial 

year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work-in-Progress 

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress: The 

cost comprises purchase price, borroWing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable 

cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition! construction of PPE 

which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under 'Capital Advances: 

3.9 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets mainly comprise of computer software which is initially measured at cost. Such assets 

are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow 

to the Group. 

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 

useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may 

be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the 

useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 

Intangible Assets under Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under development' till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the 

acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses ariSing from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3.10 Lease accounting: 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all fonner 



The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as 

'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period 

of time in exchange for consideration' . 

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are 
whether: 

the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group 

the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the 

contract 

the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The 

Group assess whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is used 

throughou t the period of use. 

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the 

balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of 

the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle 

and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease 

commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement 

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The 

Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 

payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is 

readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate. 

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be 

payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be 

exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for 

interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in­

substance fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use 

asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

3.11 Assets! Disposal Groups held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is considered 

as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Group; are available for 

immediate sale in their present condition; are being a . ely marketed for sale at a price and the sale has 
C LIMi t ', 
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been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such assets are 

measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are not 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies 

investment in the entity (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held for sale. 

3.12 Investment property 

Investment properties are the assets which have undetennined future use. Investment properties are 

measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment 

properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price, 

borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 

working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 

purchase price. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Group beyond one year. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives! 

The Group only has land as an investment property, which is not depreciated. 

De-recognition 

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 

pennanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any 

gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in 

which the property is derecognized. 

3.13 Financial Instruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 

transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured 

initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described 

below. 

Classiftctl tion and subsequent measurement of finanCial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories 

upon ini tial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 



• Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Finandal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All finandal assets except for those at FVTPL or equity instruments at FVOCI are subject to review for 

impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a 

financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are 

applied to each category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortiud cost 

A finanCial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold finaneal assets to 

collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A loss allawance for expected credit losses is recognized on finandal assets carried at amartized cast. 

Modification of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a finandal asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Graup 

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the finandal asset and recognizes a modification gain ar loss 

in profit ar loss. The gross carrying amount of the finandal asset shall be recalculated as the present 

value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's 

original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 

financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Finandal assets at FVTPL include finandal assets that are either do not meet the criteria for amartized 

cost classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are 

deSignated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative Einandal instruments also fall into this 

category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or 

losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of finandal assets in this category are determined by 

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host 

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 

a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise 

would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign 

exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to 

a party to the contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

s. 



or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for 

trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at 

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment 

classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are 

recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVOCI reserve within equity, 

except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such gains 

and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the Group may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions 

have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference 

recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been 

recorded. 

De-recognition of financial asset. other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to 

receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and 

substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Group also derecognizes the financial asset if 

it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 

except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVfPL, that are carried subsequently at 

fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 

or Joss. 

Hedge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements: 

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 



- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity 

actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments deSignated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair 

value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is 

effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in 

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification 

adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group formally deSignates and documents the hedge 

relationship, in accordance with the Group's risk management objective and strategies. The 

documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s) 

being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness 

requirements. 

Fair Value Hedges 

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 

Profit &< Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amount of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging instrument 

ceases to exit. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately 

in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.14 Impainnent of financial assets 

Loan assets 

The Group follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL 

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default 

and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PO) - The PO represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 



Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default 

occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be 

lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding. interest 

accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD 

and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than Loans 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has 

increased Significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since 

initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at 

the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial 

recognition. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 

without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of Significant increases in credit risk since initial 

recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased Significantly 

since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet 

date. 

Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped 

pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority. 

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash eqUivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short­

term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.16 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders' meeting and the Board of 

Directors respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are 

recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Group. 

3.17 Material prior period errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the 

prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period 

presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are 

restated. 



3.18 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.19 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or 

directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is detennined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable income. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in 

profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or equity, respectively. 

3.20 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short tenn compensated absences (such as a paid 

annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non­

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 



A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions in respect of the 

employees into a separate fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further 

contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the Group towards 

defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the contributions 

relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and Other 

Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans covering 

eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on 

retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and other defined 

parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan assets for 

funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Group's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit 

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The 

liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of 

the Defined Benefit Obligation (080) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. 

Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one­

year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an 

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction 

value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the 

unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected 

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis. 

3.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 

past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and 

amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions 

are measured at the estimated expenditure reqUired to settle the present obligation, based on the most 

reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with 



the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money 
is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of 

the Group or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 

be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the 

obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the 

related asset is disclosed. 

3.22 Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

into account a market participant'S ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use. 

The GrOll p uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 

tl 



• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements regularly, the 

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is Significant to the fair value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.23 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities Simultaneously. 

3.24 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same 

party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using 

the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise significant accounting policies. 

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is 

aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. The 

identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 

transferee 

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3.25 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account 

4. Implementation of Newl Modified Standards 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind AS. 

The Group has analysed the impact of these amendments, which is not material to the Group. 



• 
5. Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make 

judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 

and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

$ignifiCJJnt ma/Ulgement judgments 

Recognition of deferred tax assetsl liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 

is based On an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax 

assets can be utilized. Further, the Management has no intention to make withdrawal from the Special 

Reserve created and maintained under section 36(I)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the 

special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the Group does not 

create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies - The 

applicable tax laws provide for tax deduction in respect of dividend income from equity investments, to 

the extent of dividend declared by the Company to its shareholders during the year. ConSidering the 

historical information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, the Company does not expect 

any tax liability on the undistributed reserves of the Group Companies, as and when such reserves are 

distributed. Hence, the Company does not create any deferred tax liability on undistributed reserves of 

Group Companies. 

Evaluation of indicators for Impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Investment in SPY. - Transmission projects are managed as per the mandate from Government of 

India and the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these projects 

unilaterally. The Group therefore considers its investment in respective SPVs as associates having 

significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - Interest income on credit-impaired 

loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of 

stressed assets. 

Significant estimates 

Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak - The Group has considered the possible impacts of COVID-19 in 

preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and 

going COncern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on 

revenue recognition and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Group has carried out this 

assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of 
these consolidated financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to 

these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of 
COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of 
approval of these consolidated financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19. The 
extent to which the Covid-I 9 pandemiC will impact the Group will depend on future developments, 
which are uncertain, including. among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the 



Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government or the Group to contain its spread or 

mitigate its impact. 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 
utility of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and 
the annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In 
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it 
is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used 
for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, 
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax pOSitions and also in respect of 
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit loss ('ECl') - The measurement of an expected credit loss aUowance for financial 
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions 
about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and 
resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgments about the foUowing while assessing expected 
credit loss to estimate ECL: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 

product! market and the associated ECl; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL. 

• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 

case of default) 



6 Cash md cash equivalents 

Particulars 

• Cash In Hand (lndudlnS"""'" " 1 ....... 0 
- BalancH with Banks 

• in currenl accounts 

• deposits with origin.l maturity less than 3 months 

Total (C .. h .. Cash Equivalents) 

7 Bank Balances (other than Cuh and Cash Equivalents) 

Partiad.n 

- Eumarked Balance. with Banks 

- For unpaid dividends 

- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 

- Eannarked Term Depositl 

- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 

- Term Deposit Mid as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee 

• Term Deposit- Debenture Redemption ResttVe5 

- Balances with banb not avanable for ule pendlng 

allotment of 54Ee Capital Gain Tax EnmpHon Bonds 

-other Tenn depoajtt 

- Term Deposits with remaining m.turity more than 3 
months but less than 12 months 

. . 
1
-Term DePOSits With ongtnal matunty more than 12 

months 

Total (Other Bank Balances) 

8 Trade Receivablea 

Partic:u.lan 

(A) Unsecured, Considered good 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

IB) Trade receivables which have significant increse in credit risk 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

IC) Cre<hl impaired receivables 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Tobll Trade Receivables (A+B+O 

~. C on rorcs 

As aI31-12-2022 As at 31~-:W22 

0.06 0.02 

206.92 130.61 
4.58 10.36 

211.56 UO.99 

(l in Crores) 

Aa.t 31-12-2022 As.t 31..Q3..20U 

6.36 6.39 

309.85 880.58 

0.62 0.59 
. 0.27 

12.78 225.33 

818.14 1,291.54 

142.25 114.26 

1,350.00 2,518.96 

15.80 49.24 

66.45 65.28 1 

_~ inCnxes 
As at 31-12-2022 A. at 31-03-2022 

109.62 91.94 

(\9.29) (12.48) 

90." 19.46 

31.48 30.91 

(25.33) (15.88) 

12.15 15.09 

55.45 54.36 

(55.22) (54.36) 
0.23 

102.71 94.55 
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9 Derivative Financial Instruments 

Ii) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include 
hedges that are either deSignated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges. The table below shows 
the fair values of derivative finandal instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. 

Part I 
(~ in Crores) 

Particulars As at 31-U-2022 As at 31..()3-2022 

Notional Fair Value- Fair Value - Notional FairValue- Fair Value -

Amounts Assets Uabilities Amounts Assets Uabilities 
Currency Derivatives 

- Currency swaps 3,104.48 14.08 10.33 2,850.13 1.39 48.37 

-Others 

- Call Spread 2,069.66 196.94 - 1,895.18 76.73 -
- Seagull Options 75,072.97 7,552.50 87.74 54,727.54 4,868.28 -

Sub-total (i) 80,247.11 7,763.52 98.07 59,472.85 4,946.40 48.37 
Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 35,394.64 717.22 300.56 33,239.41 563.77 173.52 
Sub-total (ii) 35,394.64 717.22 300.56 33,239.41 563.77 173.52 
Other derivatives 
- Reverse cross currency swaps 4,747.00 - 523.37 4,747.00 - 331.25 
Total- Derivative Financial Instruments (i + ii+iii) 1,20,388.75 8,480.74 922.00 97,459.26 5,510.17 553.14 



., 
~ 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Part II 

Included in Part I are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

(~ in Crores) 
Particulars As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

Notional Fair Value- FairVaIue- Notional Fair Value - Fair Value-

Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Fair Value Hedging 

-Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 15,950.70 5.58 296.57 - - -
Cash Flow Hedging 

- Currency Derivatives 
48.371 • Currency Swaps 3,104.48 14.08 10.33 2,842.77 -

- Others 
. Call Spread 2,069.66 196.94 . 1,895.18 76.73 . 

• SeaguU Options 75,072.97 7,546.53 66.68 54,727.54 4,868.28 . 

- Interest Rate Derivatives 

. Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 12,743.94 361.61 3.99 13,313.21 115.10 45.27 

Sub-total (i) 92,991.05 8,119.16 81.00 72,778.70 5,060.11 93.64 

Undesignated Derivatives 11,447.00 356.00 544.43 12,829.86 430.30 347.50 

Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii) 1,20,388.75 8,480.74 922.00 97,459.26 5,510.17 553.14 _ .. _._.-

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of fair value hedges, the changes in fair value of the 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments along with the fair value changes in the carrying amount of the hedged items are recognised in the Statment 
of Profit & Loss. For undesignated derivatives, the changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss . 



:. 

10 Loans 
The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(i) 
(ti) 

(8) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(Ui) 

Particulars 

Loans 

Term Loans 
Working Capital Term Loans 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Security DetaUs 

Secured by tangible assets 

Covered by Bank/ Govt. Guarantees 

Unsecured 

Less: Impainnent loss allowance 

I Loans in India (C)(1' 

(i) 

(ti) 

Public Sector 

Private Sector 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

(C)(1 l) Loans outside India 

Total (A) - Gross Loans 

To,,"1 (A) - Net Loans 

Total (8) - Gross Loans 

Total (8) - Not Loans 

To,,"1 (C)(I) - Gross Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Not Loans 

Total (C)(11) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(I) and (C)(II) 

As at 31-U-2022 

Principal 0/. Amortised Cost 

4,07,771.19 4,09,077.47 

3,376.98 3,397.90 

4,11,148.17 4,12,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

2,32,031.78 2,32,510.76 

1,51,880.77 1,52,651.02 

27,235.62 27,313.59 

4,11,148.17 4,12,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

3,71,868.82 3,73,197.72 

39,279.35 39,277.65 

4,11,148.17 4,U,475.37 

(14,588.25) (14,588.25) 

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

- -
- -

3,96,559.92 3,97,887.12 

({ Ul Lrores 
As at 31-4)3-2022 

Principal 0/. AInortiled Coot 

3,83,310.40 3,84,566.08 

2,060.86 2,069.12 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66) 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

2,23,793.64 2,24,420.98 

1,30,973.50 1,31,510.35 

30,604.12 30,703.87 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66)j 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

3,50,455.72 3,51,732.04 

34,915.54 34,903.16 

3,85,371.26 3,86,635.20 

(14,704.66) (14,704.66) 

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 

- -
- -

3,70,666.60 3,71,930.54 



.. -

11 Investments 

(~in Crores 
Puti""", AlnortUed Cost At f.ir value 5_ Othen IA. Coot) ToW 

Through Other Through profit Detignated at 

COIDPfthattive or 1088 lairvalue 

In, .... throop profit or .... 
I 

II) (2) (3) (4) (50: 1+2+3+4) (6) (7) 

As at 31st December, 2022 

Covt. Securities l .m.69 · · · 1,429.69 · 1,429.69 

Debt Securities 824.32 · 331.59 · 1.155.91 · 1,155.91 

Equity Instruments · 395.50 36.56 · 432.06 · 43Ul6 

Preference Shares 28.72 · · · 28.72 - 28.72 

Othen · · - - - . 
TOW-C ..... IA) 2,282.73 395.50 368.15 · 3,046.38 · 3,046.38 

Investments outside India · · · · . · -
Investments in India 2,282.73 395.50 368.15 - 3.046.38 - 3.046.38 

Total· C .... (8) 2,282.73 395.50 368.15 - 3,046.38 · 3,0016.38 

Total Invesbnents 2,282.73 395.50 368.15 - 3.046.38 - 3.046.38 

Less: i1npairment loss allowance (0 • (28.72) · · · (28.72) · (28.72) 
Total· Net ([loA-C) 2,254.01 395.50 368.15 - 3,017.66 · 3,017.66 

As at 31st March, 2022 

Govt. Securities 1.37".51 - - - I,37C.51 - 1,37'.51 

Deb. Securities 365.60 - 132.55 • 498.15 - 498.15 

Equ;1y Ins'n"...," - 268.26 49.52 - 317.78 - 317.78 

Preference Shares 28.72 - - - 28.72 - 28.72 

Others - - - - - -
ToW - C ..... (A) 1.768.83 268.26 182.07 - 2,219.16 - 2,.219.16 
Investments outside India - - - - - - _ 

Investments in India 1.083.90 430.13 209.65 - 2,.219.16 - 2.219.16 
ToW - C ..... (S) 1,083.90 430.13 209.65 - 2,219.16 • 2,.219.16 

Totallnv.-.nlS 1,083.90 430.13 200.65 - 2,219.16 - 2,219.16 
Lesa: impairment loss allowance (0 (28.72) - - - (28.72) - (28.n) 

ToW· Net ([loA-C) _1.740.11 . __ 268.26 '-- 182.~,- _ - 2.190.44 • 2.190.44 



12 Other financial uaeta 

The Company has categorised all the components under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 
109. 

(A) 

(8) 

(e) 

(0) 

(E) 

Particulars 

Loan. to Employe" 

Advances to Employee. 

Security Deposits 

Recoverable from Govt, of India 

Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amounts recoverable 

Less: Impainnent Loss allowance 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

13 Current tax allets (net) 

Particulars 

Advance Income-tax &r TDS 

Less: Provision for Income Tax 

Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tax aaaet. (Net) 

14 Deferred tax aneta (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Total (A to E) 

Sub-Total (l) 

Sub·Total (2) 

(~ in Crores 
A, at 31·12·2022 AI It 31..03-2022 

44.43 41.95 
0.93 0.24 
1.59 1.67 

24,621.01 24,318.29 

177.29 144.32 

(90.73) (91.17) 

86.56 53.15 
24,754.52 24,415.31 

(l in Crores 
As at 31·12·2022 As at 31·03·2022 

2,543.71 3,296.66 

(1,951.46) (3,110.11) 

592.25 186.55 
5.26 5.26 

(0.25) (0.25) 

5.01 5.01 

597.26 191.56 

{~in Crores 
As at 31-12-2.022 Alat 31..03-2022 

3,622.16 3,160.12 



15 1'Topftty. Plant .. ~lIip_l.and lntanpblc A...w 

f~ inCroral , ......... 
Cqitalw... ... ..... w..-- ..... -

Property. Platt" F.liw,..-t "- ..... --D &0,_. 
........ """ ~UHl.uMI .... - ..... - . lOP Eql!iv-n 0f6« v ..... T .... - ... C-po .. c..,... 

1<'- ""-
_. - .... - ..... -

C_ anyiIIIa ,, __ 

,,- .. 31.G1202:1 nu, .... l3O.4O ..... . .." ".15 ... ..... "'~, •. " , .... 
AdditioN 284.01 19.90 n.,. 2.05 • .53 .... " 21.59 1.01 
Bonowirlp Cott c.p!tm.O - - s ... "",..... 3.30 03' 0.51 0.61 US 334.65 0.71 
"- "31.11.20%1 110.39 1.5. tlUl lUll " ... " .. n." .... ...." 3<2l 1(.'1 
"- " :h.aJ.Z122 nu, ,.50 ....., lUll 6'." "''' .us .... ...." ." lUI 
AdditIoN ... 2.30 .... S.23 0.03 ,U, 00' 00' 
~Co.tc.pi~ 

~ Adjustml:nts - . 0." 1.42 1.13 <" -
"- "31.lZ.lInZ llG.3' .... ... .... ...06 to'" 29.38 2'1." .U ...... ... '<12 
AcClmlctldcd depreci.ticmf .-tiNtion 

"-.131.m..mt ." ... 1 ... .." ,U, 0.31 45.1' - 1." <Jvrse for ~ period 0.02 3.46 0.63 <4, 2.30 '.75 0.02 ".59 - >IS 
~tm.entloc~ ,.26 0.11 MO 0.25 1AI1 -
"- .. 3L1l.21l1tl .., 

'2.Ol ... •. " ,..., 1l.'11 I.l6 ,m .... 
"- "31.112022 . .., ,u, .... ,. .. 19 ... l1.)' .., 57 ... to.S2 
O\trp lor the period 0.01 5.16 0." ." '65 2.49 0.02 ... " - 219 
Adjultment lor d~ 0.21 1.11 1.02 0.01 241 -
"- ., 31.l1.2IJ21 0." , .. , L91 15.17 ./J.17 13.18 0.30 "." - "" 
Nilt bIadt. .. at 3I.C13.20Z2 11 • .39 1.%2 tl7.31 .... ..., '''' '0< ... .,... 

"" ... 
Nd WctdI at at 31. t1.lOZZ ll.." '.ll 411.16 'OU "''' .. , un US .,.,. .... - 210 

~ 



16 Other non·financial assets 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Govt. Authorities 

Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 
Prepaid Expenses 

Deferred Employee Cost 
Other Assets 

17 Assets classified as held for sale 

Particulars 
(A) Disposal Group 

(i) Invesbnent in associates 

(ti) Loans to associates 

Total (A to G) 

(iii) Provision for impainnent on assets classified as held for sale 
Sub· Total (i+ii+iii) 

(8) Assets Classified as Held for Sale·Building 
Total (8) 
Grand Total (A+B) 
Liabilities directly associated with assets clauified as held for sale 

(C) Payable to associates 
Tot,HC) 

Net Assets held for sale (A+B.c) 

18 Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of MSMEs 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 

Total 

As at 31·12·2022 

As at 31-12-2022 

As at 31-12-2022 

I~ in Crores 
As at 31-03-2022 

8.39 8.19 

11.89 3.56 

42.60 42.20 

0.08 0.48 

19.48 3.12 

10.70 11.11 

om 0.02 

93.15 68.68 

(~ in Crores) 
A.lt31-03-2022 

1.00 0.40 

20.38 12.83 

(9.71) (9.71) 

11.67 3.52 

0.58 0.86 
0.58 0.86 

12.25 4.38 

om 0.01 

0.01 0.01 

12.24 4.37 

{~in Crores 
As at 31·()3.2022 

0.01 -
28.24 36.48 

28.25 36.48 



19 Debt Seruritiea 

(A) 

(I) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 

(Iv) 

(B) 

(I) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(I) 

(iI) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 109. 

~~inCror~ 

PuticulU"l A, at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 
Face ValLie Amortised Cost Face ValLie Amortised COlt 

Secured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institudona1 Bonds 1,955.00 1,980.50 1,955.00 2,06531 

54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 33,004.89 33,804.64 24,146.13 25,025.49 

Tax Free Bonds 10,342.99 10,498.56 11,763.30 12,158.86 

Bond AppUcation Money 878.14 B77 .as 1,291.54 1,291 .13 

Sub-total (A) 46,181.02 47,161.55 39,155.97 40,540.79 

UnseC\lftd Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,38,859.50 1,43,355.96 1,44,D14.6O 1,48,998.67 

Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 8.SS 3.96 8.00 

Foreign Currency Bonds 33,114.48 32,876.26 30,322.85 30,027.15 

Sub-total (B) 1,71,917.94 1,16,240.77 1,74,401.41 1,79,033.82 
Total · O.b,5e<:uri,le. (A>B) 218158.96 2,23A02.32 213$57.38 2.19,570.61 
Debt Securities issued in! outside India 
Debt Securities in India 1,85,044.48 1,90,526.06 1,83,234.53 1,89,541.46 

Debt Securities outside India 33,114.48 32,816.26 30,322.85 30,021.15 
Total- Debt SecurltiH 2,18158.96 2,23A02.32 2,13,55138 2.19,514.61 

20 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities' 

(A) 

(I) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(B) 

(i) 

(il) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has categorised aU borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd 

AS Hl9. 

(~inCro~ 
Particulars As at 31-12-2021 AI at 31-03-2022 

Priad.,.! 011 Amortisflt Cost Principal 01. AmortlHd Cost 

Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from 8anks 51,152.15 51,250.92 42,81832 42,919.86 

Term Loans from Financial Institutions 5,500.00 5,soo.oo 6,800.00 6,800.00 

Term Loan in Foreign Currency 42,664.16 42,444.73 35,634.60 35,329.81 

Term Loans from Covt. of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12 

Lease Liability 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 

Sub-total (A) 1,09,316.34 1,Q9,317.99 95,312.95 95,314.88 

Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings 

FCNR (8) Loans 14,487.57 14,488.77 9,854.92 9,861.13 

Short Term Loans! Loans repayable on demand from Banks 4,919.92 4,925.95 1,410.93 1,415.58 
Loans repayable on demand hom Holding Company . . . . 
Sub-total (B) 19,407.49 19,414.72 11,265.85 11,216.11 

Total - Borrowinp _(othe.r than Debt Suurities) (A to B) 1,28,723.83 1,28,732.11 1,06,518.80 1,06,651.59 

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) iN outside India 

Borrowings in india 86,059.67 86,287.98 70,944.20 71,321.72 

Borrowings outside India 42,664.16 42,444 .13 35,634.60 35,329.87 

Total - Borrowinp.(other than Debt Securities) 1,28,723.83 1,28,132.11 1,06,518.80 1,06,651.59 

21 Subordinated Liabilities 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 109. 

(~ inero..,) 
Particulan As at 31-12-2022 As at 31-03-1022 

Face Value Amortised Cost FueValue ADIIOrtl.ed Cost 
(i) tlSth Serles - SubordlNlte Tier-II Bond,· 2,500.00 2,618.59 2,500.00 2,668.11 

8.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023 
(ii) 175th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bond.· 2,151.20 2,206.00 2,\S1 .20 2,100.10 

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
(iii) 199th ~rie. - Subordinate TIer-II Bonda - 1,999.50 1,970.87 1,999.50 2,047.66 

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 
Total - Subordinated UabiliUeJ 6,650.10 6,795.46 6,650.10 6,816.41 

Subordinated Uabllities inJ outside India 

(i) 6,650.10 6,795.46 6,650.70 6,816.41 

(ii) 

6,650.70 6,795.46 6,650.10 6,816.41 



22 Other Finandal Liabilities 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividends (A) 

(B) Bond Application Money refundable and interest accrued 
thereon 

(C) Unpaid Principal &:: Interest on Bonds 

- Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 

- Interest on Bonds 

Sub-total (C) 
(D) Funds Received from Govt. of India for Disbursement as 

Subsidyl Grant (cumulative) 
Add: Interest on such funds (net o( refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy! Grant 
(E) Payables towuds Bonds Fully serviced by Govt. of India 

(F) Other Liabilities 
Total (A to F) 

23 Cunent tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 
Provision for Income Tax 
Less: Advance Income-tax &; TOS 

Current tax lIabllitle. (Net) 

24 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for 
(A) Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 

Earned Leave liability 

Post Retirement Medical Benefits 

Medical Leave liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 

Long Service Award 
Incentive 

Pay Revision 

Sub-total (A) 

(8) Others 

Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

Sub-totJI/(B) 

Total (A_B) 

25 Other N on-Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

(A) Income Received in Advance 

(8) Sundry Liabilities Account (lnterest Capitalisation) 

(e) Unbilled. Liability towards Capital Account 

(DJ Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 

(EJ Advance received from Govt. towards Govt. Schemes 
(F) Statutory Dues 

A. at 31-12-2022 

6.36 
0.01 

25.75 

12.04 
37.79 

97,099.54 

2.68 
(96,792.01) 

310.21 

24,653.53 

452.35 
25,460.25 

A. at 31-12-2022 

As at 31-12-2022 

As at 31-12-2022 

-
-
-

2.55 

25.58 

-
21 .49 

1.82 
4.01 

2.39 
29.44 

18.99 
106.27 

20.29 
20.29 

126.56 

0.28 
3.13 

27.75 
19.11 
0.13 

22.18 

0.10 
72.68 

(~In ClOre, 
A. at 31-03-2022 

6.39 

-

22.01 

6.72 
28.73 

97,373.51 

33.24 
(96,514.35) 

892.40 

24,318.29 

462.83 
25,708.64 

(t in_Crores 
A. at 31-Q3-2022 

18.01 
(7.76) 
10.25 

~ inCrores 
As at 31-03-2022 

0.34 
25.57 

0.71 
21.49 

1.79 
4.15 
2.25 

28.47 

-
84.77 

20.90 
20,90 

105.67 

(t in Crores 
As at 31-03-2022 

4.10 
26.96 

28.72 
1.00 

28.25 

-&'==:::::.....:0 .. 10 



..... 

'" 

26 Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Authorised: 
Equity shares of ~ 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up : 

Fully paid up Equity shares of t 10 each 

Total 

7:1 lnatnunents entirely equity in nature 

Puticulars 

Fully paid up Petpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity in nature of 

00 lakhs each 

Total 

28 Other Equity 

rorticu1 ... 
(A) Other Reserves 

(i) Special Reserve created U/S 36(1) (vill) of the Income Tax Act, 1%1 

(ti) ~~ for Bad and doubtful debts uJs 36(l)(viia) of the Jncome Tax Act. 1961 

(Ui) Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934-
(iv) Securities Premium 

(v) Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account 
(vi) Capital Reserve 
(vii) General Reserve 
(B) Retained Earnings 
(C) Other Compfthensive Income (OCn 

- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive lncome 
- Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 

- Cost of Hedging reserve 

d e.,;. Total- Other Equity (A+B+C) 

(~ in Crores) 
As aI31-12-2022 As at 31-03-2022 

No. of Shares Amounl No. of Shares Amounl 

5,00.00,00,000 5,000.00 5.00.00,00,000 5,000.00 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 

2,63,32,24,000 2,633.22 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 

(~ in Crores 1 
As at 31-12-2022 As 0131-03-2022 

Number Amount Number Amount 

5,584 558.40 5,584 558.40 

5,584 558.40 5,584 558.40 

(~ in Crores) 
As aI31-12-2022 ~ As at 31-03-2022 

24,286.84 22,302.93 

196.82 
7,425.15 5,814.00 

1,577.53 2,236.54 
(874.57) (555.29) 

12,036.27 1 11,839.45 
9,433.81 7,186.05 

(90.24) (37.98) 

552.93 194.21 
(2,323.13) (395.95) 

52,024.59 48,780.78 



29 Inlout IlKOme 

IAI 
()) 

PartiCldan 

Infeftlt on Loan Asse" 

Long term financing 
Less: Rebate for timely pilymenb/completion etc 

(HI 

(81 

()) 

(0 
(H 

(01 
()) 

(HI 
(WI 

(iv' 
(vI 

Long term financing (net) 

Short term financing 

Interett Income frvm lnvnfmenbi 

Interest from Long Term InYe$lments 

Intelql on DepotJb with 1mb 
Interest from Deposits 

Other Internt Incom. 

Interest on Delayed Payments by 80rr0wen 
Interest from St.1ff Advances 

Interest on MobiliNltion Advance 

Unwirufing of Discount of Security Deposits 

Inter.!St from SPY, 

Sub-total (AI 

Sub-total lis) 

Sub-total (CJ 

Sub-total (D) 

Total-Intere.t Income fA to D) 

30 Dividend Income 

.... """" 
• Dividend. &om Long-Term Investments 

Total- Dividend Income 

31 Fe .. and CommlNlon Income 

.... """" 
Fees based Income 

Prepayment Premium 
Fee for Implementation of Govt. Sdlemes 

Total- Fen and CoauniaaJOIIlncome 

32 Sale of aervicn 

ConSWtancy E~ Services 
TOIa! 

33 Other Incom. 

.... <U!uo 
Net saini (Ios.s) on de-recognition of Property, Plant lind Equipment 
Net saini (Iou) on dlspos.l of aS$eIa classified a5 held for HIe 

Rental Income 
liabUlties/Provision Written &ck 

Fees from Trainins Courses 
Interest from lncomeTax Refund 

Mlseel Janeous Income 
Total- Other IlKOm. 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

OnFlnandai On Financial On Flnandal .- ..... AIM .. meuwed 
meuwed at meuweda. a. Fair Vain 
Fair Value Amortised Colt lhnIush Profit or 

throughOCl 

28,255.30 
(0.01) 

28,255.29 

201.01 

28,456.30 

113.20 

113.20 

85.39 .... 
168.39 

2.30 
0.20 

0.13 

0.41 

111.43 

18,8.26.32 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

Period .nded31-U-2022 

Period endtd 31-12-2022 

Period .nded 31-U-2022 

L_ 

21.57 

21.57 

21.51 

9.57 ,., 

"''' , .... 
25.21 

152.68 

148.98 
1-48.98 

'2' 
12.111 

130 
1.06 

'.88 
".33 

(~irlCrom 

Period ended 31-12-2021 

OnFlnandal On Flnandal OnFlnandal 

"'"" meuwed Auets meuwed Auets meuured 
al Fair Value at Amortised at Fair Value 
throughOCl COlt lhnIuah Profit or 

28.425.24 

(0.03) 

28.425.21 

150.37 

211,515.511 

80.21 ...,. 

50.49 

50.49 

141.07 

3.10 

0.111 

0.12 

0.30 
1".17 

28,851.05 

Period ended 31-12-2021 

Period ended 31-12·2021 

Period ended 31-12·2021 

Period ended 31·12·2021 

LM. 

26.46 

2U6 

2U6 

.. 72 

'.72 

(~ irlCr0re5 

59.42 
299.35 

15.23 

37UlO 

(~irlCrom 

91.88 
91.B! 

(~tn Cr0re5 

25.33 
1.71 

12.71 

, ... 
0.01 

1.96 
47.52 



Sf Finan~ Coati 

FIN~ Costs haw been intwred on fiNndal IiIbUities measured at amortised cost 

• ·,c. 
PutinlIus Period elided :n-12-2022 Period elided 31-12-2021 

(i) IlIte_t on Bonowlnp 

• Loans from Govt. of India 
- t.ou. from Banks,! Finandallnstitutions 

- Exlem&l Commercial Borrowings 

- Lease llibility 

Sub-TotaUU 

(UI IlIte'"t Oil Debl5«uritiel 

- Domestic Debt Securities 

- Foreign Cunency Debt 5eruritill!S 

• Commercial Paper 

Sub-TotalCU) 
(WI Intehllt on Subordinaled LUibiUti .. 

• Subordinate Bonds 

Sub-Total fW) 

(iv) Other 11I1e_t Expe_ 

• Swap Premium 
- Interest on Advanc;e IncomeT;IIx 

- Interest on liillbility towOIrds employee benefits 
- Miscellaneous inlere5t expense 

Sub-Tolal (iv) 

Total- Finance Coat. 

Less: Finulce Costs Clpilalised 
Total- Finance COIIt. (Net) 

35 Net tnntlltion/ trantlctlon eKhanp louI (pin) 

PuticulUli 

Net translltion/tr_ctlon exdumge 105-5/ (Silin) 

36 Feea and (OJIImillion expense 

(II 
(HI 
(WI 
(iv) 

(" 

............ 
Guarantee Fee 
Usting and Trusteeship Fee 
Agency Fees 

Credit Rating E~ 

Other Finance Oiiorses 

PuticulUli 

Total (I 10 iv) 

(AI Net galnI floal) on f1nandal iNtnunentiat Fair Value through profit 

(i) 

lUI 

MI_ 

On trading Portfolio 
Othen 

• Otanges in fair v;lllue of Derivatives 

- o.aroges in falr v;lllue of LongTerm Investments 

• Changes in fair value of Short-term MF investments 
Sub-total CU) 

Total (A) 

PtT:Iod elided 31-12-2022 

Period elided 31-12-2022 

Period elided 31-12-2022 

619.69 

2.153.69 
1,116.88 

4.490.26 

9,88.5.28 

1,Gi'3.41 

10,958." 

.... 63 

'0'-" 

1.319.18 

.-" 
0.13 

I",", 

11,231.11 

11,231.11 

1,144.25 1 
1,144251 

219 

0.05 
. 91 
2.61 
5.53 

11.35 

91.15 

(15.36) 

'29 ,. .. 
16.08 

Period ended :n-12-2021 

Period elided 31-12-2021 

Period ended 31-12-2021 

611.44 

2.106.Oi' 
386.88 

3,110.39 

11.338.91 
956.93 

6.02 

l2.J01.92 

.fOi'.14 

tOi'.14 

",-" 
2.60 
1.48 

183." 
16,70U8 

(5.60) 

16,691.88 

321.87 

32'>1 

(' in CI'Ol6 

>22 

0.81 

O!" 
6.41 

0.84 
12>1 

''',c, 

291.13 

1.62 

1.07 

"'50 
290.58 

F'lIr VAlue dumgts In tillS sdrfdl4lt IIU oilln ih41IllIo$t 111'&51"1 on IICCOl4nl of lIt:tnud ,ntmsllncomd upmse 11M rtpnsmh clumges ,n fillr lIIlIlit of dtrill/lhl1t5 thslf1Ulltd 11$ «onomlC Irtdgts n4I 

dnignQtall4ndtr Irtd~ II('Q)/lnting tmd iMjfrcIirJt Irtdgt 

38 Impabmenl on f1nandallnslrwllent. 

Partlcu.lUII Period ended 31-12-2022 

On fil'l.andalwlrwllent. meuured On f1nandalwlrwllelltl 

III 
CUI 
(II) 

• Loans· 
- Investments 

- Others 

Partlcu.lUII 
p,..jcct: Expen$C:s 

alFVOCI 

Total(l+iij 

meuure4 al AmortiMd Cosl 
429..55 

22.40 
451.95 

Period ended 31-12-2022 

Total 

(t· C ID -Period ended 31-12-2021 

On finandallNtrumentl 
meuured at FVOa 

31.56 
31.56 

On f1nandallnslrwllenb 
meulln/d al .un.ortiMd COlt 

Period ended 31-12-2021 

2,683.58 
28.72 
4.14 

2,108.16 

47.S4 .,.. 



to EDlployee Im,Bb ExptftM 

IUnC:Parft ,......,.., hrlod tftded: )1·12·2022 P.riod tnd,d )1·12-2021 
• s.b.rtts and A1lowilnca 132.05 103.8f 
• Contribution to Provident Fund and Othtr FlJftds 1053 8,14 
• Expensa tow"rds PoM EmploymcN: I!otntfib 3.0> 6.11 
• Kent toward, Rtsidentlill Accomodatlon for Employee:s 3." '.58 
· Staff Wtlfillt Expensa 25.29 '<9, 

T ... ' " ... U1.59 

u Otpnc::bdcm and l.IDordution 

(tlnC_) 
Partlculus Period tndt4 )l·U-lOU Period tndtd: 31-12'2021 

• Dtpm::iiltlcm 011 Property, Plant. Equipment 15.19 10.59 
• AtnortiziItion an ~ ASRts 2.1' l.1S 

ToW 17.98 12,74 

{t in Crores , ......... hriod: tnd.d 31·12-2022 .,riod .nd,d 31·12-2021 

• DIrect Expmd:ltuRl! "'" S7.t1 
·O"'.me.ds •. " ... 

Total 115M 6U, 

• ·, e . 

' ......... .triod tnd,d 1l·n·2OU •• ried tMld .!I·12-ml 
· T,.ytll~ and Con~V\C't "'" 1.91 
• PubUdty 6: Promotion Expenses 5.14 ' .22 
• Rtpilirs and M.lnten&nc-t 'U' 2O.Q3 

• Re'tt.. Wees and tfIIt'IJ' <O$lS 
..,. 4.2, 

-1,.u'iIflCt~ 0.14 0.08 

· Communicttion costs , ... ,0> 

• Printi"l6:lt&tionay 0." 061 

• DlrKtor's fitt:ln& fees 0.29 0.10 

· Auditors' "'" and tKpeJl5C5 0.80 080 

· lAs. l " ~ O\MJH 'U, 9.l. 

• Net Lon on OisposaJ 01 'roperty, Plant" Equiprnent ' .66 
• Tralning And C~ E:qoense . " , .< .. 
• GoY!:. Schmw ManltorirIS Expenses 7." 1).47 

- Impiiinnent aUowU'll't llf'I.s.Iets dilaifitd ill hdd for wit 9.71 

• Othn Expenditure IUt 11.14 
T ... , .4.1. 92,63 

{t inC ~ 
p ........ ~ ,.rtod. t",lI", 3I·12·2O'U hrllMlt.ndtd St-11·ml 

· CunenttaK~ 1,916.96 2.387.34 

• Cunent t'l( ~ (btNfit) ~ kl t&l'lirr y •• rs (147.19) 

Sub-4ol.ll· C_ .. tTa:c 1,129," .... , ... 
· Dt:kned taK cxpaut/ (Cftdit) 65.16 (548.49) 

Tolal \,194.13 ' ....... 
4S EuNnp per ShaN 

'&rticul_ ,.rtof .aded )1·U-21IU 'trtod .nd.if )1-12·%021 --ProHt for the year from continuing OptfiltiOl\$ ill per Sti_ment of Profit 8,10l.6t 7.73437 

tnd Lou (t in CroftS) 

Profit for tht )'tilt from l1)nIinuing and discontinued ~n.ti0l'l5 .. per 8..101.61 7.734.37 

Statement of Profit iIRd Lou (' in C_) 

[)rop_ln". 

Weighted avtr.p Number of equity .hates· 2.63,32.24.000 2,63,32,24.000 

B •• le '" Dilu~ Etminp ptr Shllre (In 'loran equity5~of~ IO~J );Jj7 29" 
(101' ~linuins~) 
B.sle '" Diluted Etminp per Sh.n: (In ~ for.n tquity shirt 01' IO .. c:hj 

for :ot1tinuin and d' ntinued «"lions) 30.77 29" 

• Durtns the period,. 1M COfIIpMy hu lssued 65,83,06,000 equity shiIru ol f IOeach .. fuUy ptid-up bonus ~.ftS In 1M ,,,tIoofl (()nt) equity sh.,.lior~ry l (T'hret)lqI.lity WN 
outs,-ndlng on the record d,,1t i. •. 18th August 2022. Accordingly. as f'fqlI~ by Ind AS-3J, f.uninp ptfWft. the EPSof a.ltTe1t and previous ptrlod hilvt bHn restilttd. 


